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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

INTRODUCTION

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of (GGuaranty Trust
Bank (Tanzania) Limited {the “Bank”) for the year ended 31% December 2022, which disclose the
state of financial affairs of the Bank.

INCORPORATION

The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2002, domiciled in
the United Republic of Tanzania and a subsidiary of Guaranty Trust Bank, Nigeria.

BANK’S VISION AND MISSION
Bank’s vision
We are a team driven to deliver the utmost in customer service.

We are synonymous with innovation, building exceflence and superior financial performance and
creating role models for society.

Bank’s mission

We are a high-quality financial services provider with the urge to be the best at all times whilst adding
value to all stakeholders.

Core Values

Our style of operation, staff conduct and service delivery models are built on 8 core principles aptly
dubbed; The Orange Rules in fine with the BanK's vibrant Orange corporate colour.

Why Orange?

Orange is a joyous colour

Orange frees and releases emotion

Orange evokes a feeling of warmth

Orange demands attention

Orange stimuiates the mind

Orange indicates a person who is sociable and loves to be in the company of others; a person
who has loads of energy, exciting and fun to be with.

QOrange relates to a person who has great practicai-hands on-skills.

= QOrange personalities are friendly, ready smile, respond positively and fluent if not profound
in speech. They are good-natured and gregarious and do not fike to be left alone.

The Orange Rules are principles for progression, success, relationships and life. They guide our
approach to banking and everything we do. These rules are: -

i.  Simplicity
We are straightforward, direct and easy to deal with, making the complex uncomplicated.

ii. Professionalism
We are thorough and efficient, always inspiring confidence.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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BANK’S VISION AND MISSION (CONTINUED)

ii. Service
This is our major strength; we're constantly improving on our ability to delight our customers.

iv. Friendliness .
We enjoy working together fo fulfi customers' needs, building mutually rewarding

relationships.

v.  Exceilence
We stand out from the crowd, always refreshing, atways beyond the ordinary.

vi.  Trustworthiness
We are reliable, what we say is what we do; trust us to always do what is right.

vil, Social Responsibility
We care, we believe in building and sharing for the good of all.

viii.  Innovation
We evoke inspiration and respect, our originality is second to none, we are bold, classy and
always setting the pace.

Culture statement

Guaranty Trust Bank is a friendly brand that trufy cares and this permeates through every sphere of
our business. We have a value system that is hinged on professionalism, ethics, integrity, and
superior customer service. We maintain a culture of excellence and go to great lengths to actualize
the popular phrase; The Customer Is King. We are a Proudly African and Truly International

institution,
NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR
Nature of operations

Guaranty Trust Bank (Tanzania) Limited obtained a banking operating license from the Bank of
Tanzania on 28" December 2017. The Bank is engaged in the business of providing solution to
financial chaflenge, including the taking of deposits, granting loans and providing payment
platform/services to the general public.

Business developments

During the year ended 31st December 2022, Guaranty Trust Bank {Tanzania) Limited recorded a
pre-tax loss of TZS 730.52 million (2021: loss of T2S 1,577.08 million).

Total operating income increased by 21.59% to TZS 5,502 million (2021: TZS 4,525 million). The
increase was significantly contributed by increased interest income as a result of enhanced earning
assets volume predominantly from disbursed loans and advances to customers and fixed income
securities investment and increased fees and commission resulted from fransactions. Impairment
charges on [oans and advances was TZS 30 million (2021: TZS 116 million). The Bank’s net loan
book was TZS 22,474 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021; TZS 19,868 million}, being an
increase of 13% over the previous year. The total balance sheet size increased by 18% to TZS
68,343 million (2021: TZS 57,322 miltion). Customers’ deposits for the Bank stood at TZS 47,424
million as at 31% December 2022 (2021 TZS 34,954 millicn}, being an increase of 36% over the
previous year. Deposits from banks stood at NIL as at 31% December 2022 (2021: NiL).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)
Business developments {continued)

The following Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are considered by the Directors as
measuring the delivery of the Bank’s strategy and managing the business:

effective in

Performance indicator Definition/calcuiation method 2022 2021
(%) (%)
Return on equity Net profit/Total equity -4_.46 -8.29
Return on assets Net profit/Total assets -1.21 -2.80
Cost to income ratio Total costs/Net income 114.37 134.85
interest margin on earning | Total interest incomef(investment in 8.26 9.80
assets government securities + balances with
other financial institutions + interbank
loan receivables + invesiments in other
securities + net loans, advances and
overdraft)
Non - interest income to | Non - interest income/Total income 35.82 42.40
(Gross income
Gross loans to customers to | Total  loans to  customers/Total 47.39 56.84
customer deposiis deposits from customers
Non - performing loans to | Non - performing loans/Gross loans 1.81 1.52
gross loans and advances
Earning assets to total assets | Earning assets/Total assets 73.29 72.81
Growth on total assets Trend (2022 Total assets — 2021 Total 19.23 44.94
assets/2021 total assets) *%
Growth on loans and | Trend (2022 loans and advances — 13.12 51.39
advances to customers 2021)/2021 loans and advances) *%
Growth on customer deposits | Trend (2022  deposits - 2021 35.67 104.73
deposits/2021 depaosits) *%
Capital adequacy
Tier 1 Capital Core capital/Risk weighted assets 44,11 50.72
including Off balance sheet items
Tier 1+Tier 2 Capital Total capital/Risk Weighted assets 4411 50.72
including off-balance sheet items.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND PERFCRMANCE FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)
Business developments (continued)

In order to achieve growth and inflation targets set forth in the broader macroeconomic objectives,
and cognizant of the icoming inflationary pressures arising from external shocks, the Bank of
Tanzania continued io ensure price stability, while safeguarding growth of the economy. The Bank
of Tanzania closely monitored the risks of inflation arising from external shocks, and considered
reduction of monetary policy accommodation, as and when the need arose in the year. In line with
this stance, the monetary policy was geared to achieve the following targets in 2022/23 fiscal year:
(iy growth of reserve money by 11.4 percent; (i) growth of extended broad money by 10.3 percent;
and (iii} private sector credit growth by 10.7 percent. In addition, the Bank of Tanzania endeavored
to maintain adequate foreign exchange reserves at a level covering at least 4 months of imports of
goods and services in most part of the year.

Meanwhile, the Bank of Tanzania continued implementation of activities aimed at moving to an
interest rate-based monetary policy framework. The activities include improving model framework,
creating awareness to stakeholders, preparing monetary policy operational framework, and
undertaking reforms in the financial sector to improve monetary policy transmission.

The Bank's loan porifolio remained in current status due fo the management’s dedication to pre-
disbursement and post disbursements monitoring during the pericd. Industry Asset quality improved
as reflected by the decrease in the ratio of non-performing loans (NPLs) fo gross loans to 7.8% in
June 2022 from 9.3% in the corresponding period in 2021 as per Bank of Tanzania Annual Report
for the year ended 30" June 2022, while the bank closed at an impressive NPL Ratio of 1.18% as at
30" June 2022. While the end of December 2022 numbers is yet fo be published, the bank closed
with NPL ratio of 1.81%, remaining highly impressive, though slightly elevated over a similar period
in 2021 and 30™ June, 2022 ratios, The bank’s credit selection, appraisal and approval processes,
complemented by strong relationships with customers have ensured that no significant potential
credit delinquencies were recorded during the period. This arrangement has proven 1o be beneficial
to the Bank and its custormners, especially in light of the challenges being faced due to prevailing
difficult global economic environment.

The Directors extend sincere gratitude to the Bank’'s customers for their continuous support and
loyalty, staff for their contribution to the Bani's growth and all stakeholders who acted as catalysts
in bringing the Bank this far.

OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES

Obijectives of the bank

The Bank's Core Objectives are to emerge as;
{a) the customer service differentiator in the Tanzania Banking Industry,;
{b) one of the top three (3) most profitable (PBT) Tier {Hl Banks by 2024; and
{c) the most cost-effective bank in Tanzania with 40% Cost to Income Ratio.

The bank has finalized a new strategic document that will guide its business activities from 2023
through 2025.

Strategies for achieving objective
The Bank's well-articulated strategies aimed at achieving its set objectives are built around the
following: -
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5 OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES (CONTINUED)
5.2 Strategies for achieving objective (continued)

(a) Targeted Customer Acquisition
Our entry into the market is based on acquiring customers within specific market segments,
primarily Personal Banking, Small and Medium Scale Enterprises, Trade and Commercial
Banking. _

(b} Robust Technology
The deployment of the best and most modern Information Technology infrastructure remains
critical to the achievement of the bank's global strategic intent, as it will provide consistent,
efficient and effective approach to delivering exceptional service across all channels.

(c) Digital Channels
Sustained innovativeness is the most resilient source of competitive advantage in modem
banking, as it elicits convenience and reliability thereby facilitating the achievement of
ultimate customer satisfaction. Hence, we remain focused on deploying best in class digital
channels in the market at all times.

{d) Best Practice Personnel Management
Existence of an excellent workforce remains a critical factor to achieving the bank’s global
intent. Therefore, adoption of best practice personnel management to attract and retain
exceptional individuals, while developing them to become top notch professionals and role
models with strong commitment to achieve their personal and organizational objectives.

(e) Effective Risk Management & Compliance Framework
Development of a successful bank is hinged on effective risk management and compliance
framework for the prevention among others, regulatory penalties and sanctions, losses and
reputational damage. The bank adheres to all regulatory risk thresholds cum local and
international best practices with efficient electronic platform that monitor money taundering,
terrotism financing and other transactional risks.

{f} Accentuate Cost Containment
Effective cost efficiency is a critical enabler for the bank's profitability objectives. Effective
budgeting, stringent purchasing procedures, cost control and adoption of efficient technology
are tools to achieving the desired cost to income ratio.

5.3 Managing operations for the Bank
The bank's operational activities are managed through four (4) management committees; Assets
and Liability Management Committee, Management Credit Committee, Management Risk
Committee and Criticized Assets Committee to ensure effective and good Corporate Governance at
the management level.

These committees form the bedrock for the long-term professional management of the business of
the Bank.

The committees meet in the minimum quarterly or more frequently in line with business exigencies.
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OPERATING MODEL
For smooth and effective operations coupled with superior customer service, the Bank choose to
focus on the following;

(a) Consistent deployment of innovative, convenient, reliable and user-friendly channels that
enhances customer satisfaction.

(b) Establishment of an independent compliance unit equipped with latest electronic platforms
to monitor money laundering, terrorism financing and other transactional risks aimed at
avoiding regulatory sanctions, financial and reputational losses.

(c) Cost containment.

{d) Creation of exceptional and unique customer experience through sustained personalized
services that ensures consistent growth in customer acquisition and retention.

{e) Consistent provision of scalable and secured IT infrastructure and applications to support
delivery of exceptionai customer service across all channels.

(f) Establishment of a control environment in line with international standards for proactive
transaction monitoring to achieve the Bank’s objective of zero tolerance for fraud & losses.

{g) Achievement of 89% customer satisfaction with resolution of customer complaints within 24
hours.

{h) Atfraction and development of exceptional individuals into top notch professionals and role
models with strong commitment and determination {o achieve personal and organizational
objectives and

{iYy Creation of a robust system that operates above all regulatory risk thresholds and conforms
to local and international best practices.

6.1 INPUTS/RESCURCES

(a) Financial

(i) Deposits: The bank’s deposits from customers during the pericd grew by 36% from
TZS34.9Billion (2021} to TZS547 .4Billion (2022). This is an absolute growth of TZS 12.5Billion,
which resulted from delivery of innovative and exceptional services to our customers. A major
enabler to the achieved growth is the bank’s ability to deploy customized and reliable
collection and payment digital platform to our customers. The strong deposit growth resulted
in enhanced earning assets principally, loans and advances, interbank placements and
strategic investment in government securities.

{ii) Loans and Advances: The bank’s loans and advances during the period grew by 13% from
TZS519.9 billion (2021) to TZS22.5 billion {2022). Despite the growth, the bank’s careful and
professional lending guidelines ensured best in class Non-performing Leans Ratic of 1.81%
at the close of the year.

{iif) Equity: During the pericd under review, no capital injection was implemented by the bank.
The bank continued to operate with very strong capital ratios above all statutory requirements
in the industry.

{iv) Borrowings: The bank operated within weli managed fiquidity and cashflow positions that
ensured nil borrowings within the review period.

(b) Intellectual Innovations 2022
Best in class digital deployments achieved through consistent innovation remain the bank’s
competitive advantage. In the course of the year under review the bank deployed the following
additional services to the market.
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6.1

INPUTS/RESOQURCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Intellectual Innovations 2022 {continued)

(i) Digital customer on-boarding through the bank’s mobile application (GTWorld App). This
innovation was achieved through a third-party collaboration and direct integration of the
App with the National ldentification Agency (NIDA). Tanzanians were availed the
opportunity of instantly establishing relationship with the bank through validation of their
NIDA unique identification number and capturing of their thumb print in line with regulatory
requirements. The App was further improved with new and latest features that ensures
easier and more convenient transaction processing.

(i} Introduction to Agency Banking (GTWakala), a new service offered by the bank that allows
customers to quickly deposit or withdraw money from the bank through its agents. This
service provides greater accessibility and convenience for customers who opt for an
alternative to the traditional banking channels. The bank commenced with twenty-five (25)
test-run agents, that is planned for enhancement to sixty (60) in the subsequent financial
year.

(iii) implementation of Tanzania Instant Payment System (TIPS) which is currently available
on all banking channels; mobile, internet banking and in-person services. This aliows
customers to effect instant transfers to other banks and mokile wallets, reducing the time
and effort required to complete financial transactions. The availability of this service is a
key source of competitive advantage for the bank in the market.

(iv) Introdugction of International Money Transfer Service through partnership with international
operators such as Ria, Western Union, and MoneyGram, hence crealing easier avenues
for customers to send and receive money from overseas.

{(v) Enhancement of the Guaranty Automated Payment System (GAPS)} — the bank's
Corporate Internet Banking Platform for exceptional customer experience. These features
ensure monitoring of duplicated transactions, resubmission option for failed transactions,
and transaction canceliation at uploader level. '

A. Human Capital

Our workforce remains our most valuable asset in meeting our vision of becoming the leading
customer-centric national and global bank. As such, the health and safety of all our employees,
customers, vendors and other stakehalders are of utmost priority to us. Our strategic policy is to
continue to make our workplace conducive for all. In short, we continue to strive to create a safer
and healthier working enviranment.

For our entire staff, we provided training on several subject matters ranging from Cyber security,
Corporate Governance, Customer Relationship Management, Compliance, Environmentat and
Social Risk Management, Leadership and Management, First Aid, CPR (Cardiopulmonary
resuscitation) and Emergency Care Responses; among others.

Financial Capital

The bank maintains an optimal level of capital to meet the regulatory minimum capital
requirement of TZS 15billion to support the business growth, and investment activities. During
the year (2022) our core capitat stood at TZS 17.98billion, & reduction from TZS 18.87billion
{2021) due to resultant loss in the year of TZS 825million. Nevertheless, the bank still has strong
buffer above the minimum regulatory capital.
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C. Social and Relationship Capital

Ve passionately believe that Corporate Social Responsibility embodies an ardent commitment
and social pact with all the stakeholders. Thus, the Bank is committed to enriching lives in the
diverse communities in which it operates. That said, the bank participated at the Goat Races
2022 through purchase of a racing goat, of which event proceeds were 1o be channeled towards
execution of charitable educational activities by the Rotary Club, an international non-profit
organization of compassionate individuals with a common drive to serve disadvantaged
communifies,

. Intellectual Capital

We are a team committed 1o providing exceptional financial services with the aim of continually
surpassing our stakeholders' expectations.

We achieve this by:

«  Continually improving the Quality Management System {o ensure the effectiveness
and efficiency of our processes.

*  Creating quality awareness within our organization.

= Creating a conducive environment for innovative ideas.

»  Monitoring, benchmarking and continually improving our products, services and
employees' performance.

» [mplementing a Quality Management System that meets the requirements of the ISO
S001:2015 quality standards.

. Natural Capital

The bank through its parent holding Company, i also an organizational stakeholder at the
Global Reporting initiative, our role is that of promoting research and development in the area
of sustainability reporting.

Global reporting initiative is an international not-for-profit organization that provides sustainable
reporting guidelines towards a sustainable global economy.

6.2 Operating activities

6.3

The operating activities of the bank is centered on: -

(a) Account Opening and Customer Profiling.

{b) Processing of customer transactions.

{c) Activation of Customers on our Electronic Banking Channels.
{d) Processing of Customers’ Account Statements Requests.

{e) Debit Cards issuance and Hotlisting.

{fy Balance Inquiry.

{g) Collection, Recording and Resoiution of Customers Complaints.

Outputs

Banking and finance are no cne’s favourite task, trust us we know. That's why we have a full set of
services to make sure that banking does not get in the way of your lifestyle. The Bank offers two
categories of the services: Banking Services and e-Banking Services.
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6.3 Outputs (continued)

{a) Banking Services

Treasury Banking

GTBank has a full-fledged Treasury team dedicated to providing innovative solutions
for your foreign exchange needs and investment services, supported by the latest
state-of-the-art infrastructure; proficient in meeting all treasury requirements.

The Treasury Team issues continuous market up-dates daily and a weekly summary
to enable its corporate, trade and retail custorners to keep abreast of the latest rmarket
news and currency {rends.

=  (GTBank offers FX services.

= Competitive pricing.

= Real time market updates available

Business Banking
a. Loans and Advances

i. Time Loans.
This is a short-term usually iess than 12 months asset-based business loan
payable in few instalments. Time loans are commoniy used to finance revenue
generating assets (such as inventory) which provide the funds to pay back the
foan.

ii. Invoice Discount Facility.

Invoice Discount Facility is a short-term borrowing facility which will provide a
quick cash flow support to Companies by freeing up cash tied up in
outstanding invoices from an employer.

iii. Overdrafts

This is short term financing not exceeding 12 months intended to support
working capital. It finances short term finance needs occurring during the
intervals between receipt of proceeds and the payment period in the context
of the asset conversion cycle.

iv. Term Lcans.

This is a monetary loan that is repaid in regular payments over a set period of
time. They are usually structured such as repayment can be covered in mid
to long term. The ability to repay over a long period of time is attractive for
new or expanding enterprises, as the assumption is that they will increase
their profit over time, due to such an elongated tenor their charges are usually
subject to changes in market conditions.

v. Post-import Financing

The service helps importers who wish to maich cash outflows with
receivables. GTBank can arrange post import finance to pay-off import
obligations allowing the importer concentrate on making sales to meet the re-
scheduled settlement date(s).

10
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6.3 Outputs {continued)

fi.

vi., Trade Finance
GTBank Trade Finance products cater for the Export and import clients. Our
Refationship Managers who are in direct contact with customers provide
solutions to meet our customer needs.

Served by seasoned personnel in Trade Finance, a variety of products are
offered by the depariment, ably assisted by SWIFT and Treasury, equipped
with Reuters on-line frading (Foreign Exchange Dealing Room). We
additionally have correspondents in all major financial centers of the world.

Personal Banking

Savings Account
Earn attractive interest on your daily balance whilst enjoying 24/7 banking and a
personalized Tanzania Shillings Mastercard for cash withdrawals and online
paymenis.

Smart Kids Save (SKS) Account - Start your children on the road to financial success
The Smart Kids Save account is designed to enable parenis/guardians save for
their children aged between 0~ 17 years, whilst also developing a savings culture
in them. Teaching chiidren, the value of savings early can help them develop
SMART financial habits for life.

Target Savings Account (GT Target) - Turn your goals into milestones
Whether you are saving towards your dream wedding, or have set sight cna new
car, with GT Target, you are guarantead to achieve your financial goals. To sign
up to GT Target, all you need is to have an existing GTBank Account.

Satary Account
This is a special account for employees (salary earners) of identified
reputable private and public organisations.

Seniors Account
The Seniors Account is a current account designed specifically for senior citizens
who are aged 60 years and above.

(b) e-Banking Services

Oniine Banking

Guaranty Trust Bank's Internet banking platform is a robust channel designed with
the state-of —the-art technology that gives you unlimited access to your accounts and
allows customears conveniently perform over 90% of their bank transactions online
real-time.

internet Banking enable customers enjoy the convenience of managing finances

quickly and easily at a time that suits them. Customers can bank safely and securely
at work, home or abroad.

11
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6.3 Outputs (continued}

ii. GTWorld
Mobile Banking App that is seamiessly designed to cater for all that's important to you
easily. The facial recognition feature means that you now have mobile banking App
that recognizes you and adapts to how and when you want to bank.

il Simple Banking (*150*97#)
The platform permits customers fo access selected mobile banking services by dialing
a short code on their mobile phones, using basic feature mobile phones, with no need
for mobile internet data to use the service.

6.4 QOCutcomes

(a) Investors
The bank's investment ratios continued to improve year on year, despite our loss- making
position. The bank is now positioned for profitability in the subsequent years.

(i} Return on Equity:

The return on equity in 2022 was -4.27% while 2021 was -8.29%, an improvement of 4.02%
year on year.

(i) Return on Assets:

The return on assets in 2022 was -1.16% while 2021 was -2.80%, an improvement of
1.64%.

(iiiy Earnings per share:

The earnings per share in 2022 was TZS - 540/share while 2021 was TZS -1,048/share, an
improvement of TZS508/share year on year.

(b} Regulators

The bank continued to comply with all extant regulations in the course of the year. Highlights

of our regulatory activities in the year are;

(i) Despite the loss-making status of the bank, we incurred Corporate Tax expense of TZS
34Million in the course of the reporting year.

(i} We ensured continuous compliance with extant policies and regulations in the year, but
unfortunately was sanctioned once by the Bank of Tanzania (BOT) for delayed
reporting.

{c} Employees
At closure of the 2022, financial year, the bank had fifty-nine (59) full ime employees
distributed 38 Female and 21 Male. This ensured a gender distribution of 64%:36% Female
to Male.

{d) Customers
We continue to serve customers, clients, communities and create value for stakeholders.
The Bank established 2,331 accounts in the year ended 31t December, 2022 compared to
2,613 accounts opened in the preceding year, representing an decrease of 11%. The
accounts are segmented into Individual Accounts, SKS Accounts, Salary Accounts, Senior
Accounts, Commercial and Small and Medium Scale Enterprises Accounts, Sole
Proprietors, SACCOS Accounts and GTCREAS Accounts.

7 DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend payment of dividend for the current year (2021 NiL).

12
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8 DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Bank at the date of this report and who have been in office since 1% January
2022.
Directors Position Qualification | Nationality Appointment/r | Dates of Attendance
esignation
Mr. Juma Alli | Chairman Fellow Tanzanian 24 june 2016 23 February 2022
Mohamed Certified 18 May 2022
Muhimbi Public 10 August 2022
Accountant 09 November 2022
Mr. Julius Director MBA Nigerian 24 June 2016 23 February 2022
Clusegu8n 18 May 2022
Kosebinu 10 August 2022
Agbaje 09 November 2022
Dr, Florence Director Public Health | Tanzanian 15 May 2018 23 February 2022
Temu Specialist 18 May 2022
10 August 2022
09 November 2022
Mr. Hanish Director MBA British 24 June 2016 23 February 2022
Chandaria 18 May 2022
10 August 2022
09 November 2022
Arch, Mbaraka | Director Master Tanzanian 10 June 2021 23 February 2022
Hussein Degree of 18 May 2022
lgangula Engineering 10 August 2022
Management 09 November 2022
Mr. Habibu Director Certified Tanzanian 28 December 23 February 2022
Juma Suluo Public 2021 18 May 2022
Accountant 09 November 2022
Ms. Charify Director Certified Tanzanian 18 January 23 February 2022
Mwakio Chartered 2022 18 May 2022
Accountant 10 August 2022
09 November 2022
Mr. Jubril Director MBA Nigerian 24 June 2016 23 February 2022
Adeola 18 May 2022
Adeniii* 10 August 2022
02 November 2022
Ms. Odunayo | Managing MBA Nigeria 22 August 2022 | 09 November 2022
QOlaoluwa Director
Akinyede™*

* Recategorized from Managing Director to Director effective November 2022
** Joined the Board effective November 2022 as Managing Director

The Board's key areas of focus in 2022 are set out by theme below:
Departmental Reports presented by Managing Director including Managing Director's

Commentary/Updates and Financial Statements.

Consideration of Bank of Tanzania Examination Report Update.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS {(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Statement

At the end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors consisted of 9 directors, including the
Managing Director. Apart from the Managing Director, no other director holds an executive position
in the Bank. The Board takes overall responsibility for the Bank, including responsibility for identifying
key risk areas, considering and monitoring investment decisions, considering significant financial
matters, and reviewing the performance of management business plans and budgets. The Board is
also responsible for ensuring that a comprehensive system of internal control, policies and
procedures is operative, and for compliance with sound corporate governance principles.

The Board is required to meet at least four times a year. The Board delegates the day to day
management of the business to the Managing Director assisted by senior management. Senior
management is invited to attend board committee meetings and facilitates the effective control of all
the Bank's operational activities, acting as a medium of communication and coordination between
all the various business units. The Bank is committed to the principles of effective corporate
governance. The Directors also recognize the importance of integrity, transparency and
accountability.

The Board is committed to the highest standards of business integrity, ethical values and
governance; it recognizes the responsibility of the Bank to conduct its affairs with transparency,
orudence, fairness, accountability and social responsibility, thereby safeguarding the interests of all
stakeholders.

During the year the Board of Directors of the Bank had the following board sub-committees to ensure
a high standard of corporate governance throughout the Bank. All these committees report to the
main Board of Directors.

i) Board Credit Committee.

Name Position Nationality Dates of Atiendance
Mr. Hanish | Non-executive, British 23 February 2022
Chandaria Chairperson 18 May 2022

10 August 2022

08 November 2022
Mr. Julius Olusegun | Non-executive, Nigerian 23 February 2022
Kosebinu Agbaje Member 18 May 2022

10 August 2022

09 November 2022
Dr. Florence Temu* | Non-executive, Tanzanian 18 May 2022

Member 10 August 2022
09 November 2022

* Joined the committee effective March 2022
The committee met four times during the year.
The Committee's key areas of focus in 2022 are set out by theme below:
»  Overview of the Credit portfolio and Facility Summary Reports (FSRs) relating

thereto.
*  Consideration of security documentation status
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK {TANZANIA) LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

i} Board Credit Committee {continued)

The Board Credit Committee is responsible for approval of credit facilities in the Bank. The Terms of
Reference of this Commitiee includes but are not limited to the following:

To consider and approve specific foans above the Management Credit Committee’s authority
limit, as determined by the Board from time to time, such approval to be granted electronically
or by appending their signature on the applicable documents,

To review Management Credit Committee’s authority level as and when deemad necessary
and recommend new levels to the Board for consideration, {o review the Asset and Liability

Management of the Bank.

To flag to the Board all Director related loans, to moniter and flag the top debtors to the
attention of the Board.

To review the Bank's internal control procedures in relation {o credit risk asseis and be
satisfied that they are sufficient to safeguard the quality of the Bank’s risk assets.

To review and be satisfied that the Bank complies with regulatory requirements regarding the
grant of credit facilities.

To handle such other issues that may be referred to it by the Board of Directors from time to
time.

The Board Credit Committee meets at least once in each quarter. Additional meetings are however,
convenead as required. Membership of the Commitiee is currently made up of Three (3) Non-

Executi

ve Directors. .

it} Board Audit Committee

Name Position Nationality | Dates of Aftendance
Mr. Hanish Chandaria” Non-executive, Member | British 08 February 2022
Dr. Florence Temu* Non-executive, Member | Tanzanian 08 February 2022
Non-executive, Tanzanian 08 February 2022
Member, Chairperson 11 May, 2022
10 August, 2022
Mr. Habibu Juma Suluo 09 November, 2022
Non-executive, Member | Tanzanian 08 February 2022
11 May, 2022
10 August, 2022
Ms, Charity Mwakio 09 November, 2022

* Membership to Board Audit Committee ended effective March 2022,
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA} LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER 2022

9 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
9.1 Corporate Governance Statement (continued)
ii} Board Audit Committee {continued)

The committee met four times during the year.

The Committee’s key areas of focus in 2022 are set out by theme below:

Audited Accounts presentation by Nexia and Approvatl by the committee.
Audit Plan, Audit Performance, Work in Progress and Status of audit issues.
Summarized Quarterly Reports and follow ups.

Previous audit findings follow up.

Audit certification.

Bank organogram including changes in management team.

New Regulations and Sanctions.

The Board Audit Committee is responsible for oversight of audit functions. The Terms of Reference
of the Board Audit Commitiee includes but is not limited to the following:

« To monitor the financial reporting process and its output.

« To oversee the establishment of accounting policies and practices by the Bank and to review
the significant qualitative aspects of the Bank's accounting practices, including accounting
estimates and financial statement disclosures.

« To monitor the integrity of the Bank's financial statements and any formal announcements
relating to the Bank’s financial performance.

« To ensure that senior management establishes and maintains an adequate and effective
internal control framework. Such framework should be designed to provide assurance in
areas including reporting (financial, operational and risk), monitoring compliance with laws,
regulations and internal policies, efficiency and effectiveness of operations and safeguarding
of assets.

« To menitor and review the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal audit function; to approve the
internal audit plan, scope, cycle and budget;

« To review the audit charter and the code of ethics of the internal audit function;

« To review discoveries of fraud and violations of laws and regulations as raised by the Internal
Auditor.

The Committee is required to hold its Meetings once every quarter.

Membership of the Committee is currently made up of Four {4) members comprising: Two (2) Non-
Executive Directors and Two {2) Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2022

9 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE {CONTINUED)

9.1 Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

jiii)y Board Risk and Compliance Committee

Name Position Nationality | Dates of Attendance
Dr. Florence Temu Non-executive, Tanzanian | 23 February 2022
Chairperson 18 May 2022

10 August 2022

0% November 2022
Mr. Julius Giusegun Non-executive, Member Nigerian 23 February 2022
Kosebinu Agbaje 18 May 2022

10 August 2022

09 November 2022
Arch. Mbaraka Non-executive Member Tanzanian | 23 February 2022
Hussein |gangula 18 May 2022

10 August 2022

09 November 2022

The committee met four times during the year.

The Committee's key areas of focus in 2022 are set out by theme below:

Presentation of the Quarterly Risk Reports.
Presentation of the Quarterly Compliance Reporis.
Approval of Policies and Charters.

The Board Risk Committee is tasked with the responsibility of setting and reviewing the Bank’s risk
policies. The coverage of supervision includes the following: Credit Risk, Reputational Risk,
Operations Risk, Technology Risk, Market and Rate Risks, Liquidity Risk and other pervasive risks
as may be posed by the events in the industry at any point in time. The Terms of Reference of the
Board Risk Management Committee includes the following:

Reviewing and recommending for approval of the Board, the Bank’s Risk management
Policies including the risk profile and imits.

Determining the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s risk detection and measurement
systems and conirols. ‘

Evaluating the Bank's internal control and assurance framework annually, in order to satisfy
itself on the design and completeness of the framework relative to the Bank’s activities and
risk profile.

COversight of Management's process for the identification of significant risks across the Bank
and the adequacy of risk mitigation, prevention, detection and reporting mechanisms.
Periodic review of changes in the economic and business environment, including emerging
trends and other factors relevant to the Bank’s risk profile.

Any other issue referred to the Committee from time to time by the Board.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CGNTINUED)
Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

iii) Board Risk and Compliance Committee (continued)

The Committee meets quarterly and additional meetings are convened as required. The Head of
Risk and Compliance of the Bank presents regular briefings to the Committee at its meetings.

Membership of the Committee is currently made up of Three (3) members comprising: One (1) Non-

Executive Director and Two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors.

10

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND TREASURY POLICIES

The Bank’s authorized share is 1,826,485 ordinary shares of TZS 21,900 each. Called up and fully
paid up shares is 1,528,586 of TZS 21,900 each.

Guaranty Trust Bank, Ltd is the major shareholder of the Bank holding 76.20% of the shares, Dhaniji
Hansraj Chandaria owns 12.53% of the shares and Rameshkumar Manubhai Patel owns 11.27% of
the shares.

The Bank maintains  well-documented Market and  Liquidity Risk  Management
Policies which outlines approved Treasury activities in the Bank and how various risks that arise
from such dealings together with other banking activities are identified, measured and managed.
These, among others, include interest rate risk, liquidity risk and Trading risk.

Regulatory and Internal Limits on the above stated risks are stipulated to enable an efficient
monitoring of compliance. Moreover, to combat any losses that may result from dealing activities,
the policy allows for establishment of dealer limits, counterparty limits and stop-loss limits that must
be reviewed regularly and kept up to-date. In addition to this, roles and responsibilities of Treasury
staff. Market Risk unit, senior management and Assets and Liabilities Management Committee
(ALMAC) members in complying with the policy are clearly stipulated.

The following risks are covered in the Market and Liquidity Risk Policies
1. Interast Rate Risk Management
This section is designed to provide written guidelines for the identification, measurement,
monitoring, control and reporting of interest rate risk. With the increasing volatility of the
global financial services industry, it has become even more imperative for Banks to continue
to proactively monitor their vulnerability to changes in interest rates and react appropriately
to those changes in order to produce adequate earnings on a consistent basis.

2. liguidity Risk Management

Liquidity Risk is the current and future risk to the bank’s earnings & capital arising from its
inability to meet its funding obligations and commitments as and when due, at a reasonable
price.

Poor or inadequate liquidity risk management could result in a funding crunch in which the
bank could be unable to meet deposit withdrawals and loan funding requests from its
customers. This inadequate management could further lead to litigations, loss of earnings,
inability to seize new business opportunities, and eventual collapse of an ingtitution.
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10 CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND TREASURY POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Banks Liguidity Risk management process entails the following activities as monitored
by Assets and Liabilittes Commitiee.

Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that daily
obligations can be met. This includes replenishment of funds as they mature or borrowed
by customers. The Bank maintains an active presence in money markets to enable this
to happen;

Maintaining a portfolio of highly liquid and marketable securities that can easily be
liquidated as protection against any unforeseen cash flows stress;

Monitoring of liquidity ratios, i.e., Liquid Asset Ratio (LAR), Loan to Deposit Ratio (LDR)
against internal and regulatory limits

Managing the concentration of customer deposits and assefs to avoid exireme
mismatches

Performing liquidity stress

Maintaining a robust and effective contingency funding plan to support in cases of liquidity
sfress.

3. Trading Risk

Trading Risk, in this policy, is defined as the risk of losses in on and off trading positions
arising from movements in market prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rate, equity
and commodity prices. This policy is developed for the Bank's liabilities and asset holdings
in the domestic and foreign money market, bond market and foreign currencies

The specific goals and objectives of trading risk management are:

Provide oversight and guidance relating to trading risk identification, measurement,
monitoring, control and reporting.

Detail trading risk sources relative o foreign exchange, interest rate, and equity and
commuodity prices.

Provide a format to ensure the appropriate management of all trading related risks to the
bank.

Report on all trading risk exposures within the bank’s businass Design, implement and
use rate scenarios and stress testing models to assess the vulnerability of the Bank's
trading portfolios to changes in market prices.

Establish framework for estimating capital charge requirement for trading risk.

Establish measures for evaluating the economic value of the Bank's trading and
investment portfolios susceptible to market prices.

Promote communication among employees, managements, and directors whose
activities affect trading risk management activities.

Ensure that appropriate levels of procedures, controls and self-monitoring techniquas are
implemented and properly administered.

The Market and Liguidity Risk Policy, further outlines the roles and responsibilities of ALMAC, Risk
management unit, senior management and in managing market and Liquidity risks for the Bank
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%" DECEMBER 2022

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BANK

The total number of shareholders during the year ending 31% December 2022 were three (3) (2021,
three (3) shareholders) as highlighted below;

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BANK
The shares of the Bank are held as follows:

Name Country of Number of Value of Shares
Incorporation / shares TZS
Residence

GUARANTY TRUST BANK LTD  Nigeria 1,164,776 25,508,594,400

DHANJI H, CHANDARIA Kenya 191,806 4.196,171,400

RAMESHKUMAR M. PATEL Kenya 172,203 3,771,245 700

Total share capital 1,628,585 33,476,011,500

MANAGEMENT

The management of the Bank is under the Managing Director and is organized in the following
departments;

. Financial Control.

. Legal and External Communications.

. Treasury.

Digital Banking.

Corporate Banking.

SME (Smail and Medium Enterprises) Banking.
Retail Banking.

Commercial Banking.

Credit Administration.

Risk and Compliance Management.

Systems and Centrol (Internal Audit).
information Technelogy.

Human Resources and Administration.
Transaction Services.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

The bank has concluded its fifth year of operations and sustained consistent growth and improved
efficiency. These achievements are attributable to the bank's achieved market competitiveness
through focus on exciting customer experiences across its distinct digital offerings and service
delivery by its well-groomed employees. As the bank progresses into the sixth year of operations,
focus is to achieve expanded market relevance through larger market share to facilitate achievement
of its objective to be the market service differentiator. The bank’s expanded digital channels will
support achievement of the outlined broad stakeholders’ objective as it is readily positioned to
introduce an e-commerce payment platform, agency banking and a second physical branch in the
new year to support growth.

In addition o the aforementioned additional service channels, the bank is endowed with a team that
is constantly improving the existing channels. On the back drop of available differentiated digital
offerings, customer acquisition will be greatly supported to boost market share in the focus sectors
of personal and premium banking, small and medium enterprises banking and commerciat banking.
The bank currently participates in the activities of the corporate sector through support offered across
their respective value chain.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

The bank's primary focus for the subsequent year is o emerge profitable and commence expansion
of its footprints across the country. The strategy for expansion will be primarily through partnerships
and establishment of additional branches in strategic locations over the next two (2} years. In
addition, as soon as the bank achieves profitability, capital will be deployed strategically towards
enhancement of the technology infrastructure and digital channels primarily aimed at supporting
deposit mobilization.

Tanzania is projected to return to strong growth based on the effective management of the Covig-
19 pandemic impact on the economy and the accommodative stance of the Bank of Tanzania. In
addition, investor receptiveness is at one of the highest levels in recent times which will foster growth
of the economy and expansion of financial services. Despite, the highly competitive landscape, the
bank is positioned to expand its scope of competitive advantage for effective growth of market share.

in light of key strengths and resources at the disposal of the Bank, the Directors believe that the
Bank will achieve its objectives as highlighted above. Being affiliated to the renowned Guaranty Trust
Holding Company Plc with presence in 11 countries worldwide, the Bank also enjoys considerabie
technological and inteliectual capital from the Group experience garnered over the last thity-One
years. The Bank's focused drive to penetrate the market further will enhance its revenue streams,
ably supported by the improving adoption of motivational and staff retention schemes which have
resulted in a reliable and committed team to date.

PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND CPPORTUNITIES
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board accepts final responsibility for the risk management and internat control systems of the
Bank._ it is the task of management to ensure that adequate internal financial and operational control
systems are developed and maintained on an ongoing basis in order to provide reasonable
assurance regarding:

« The effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

s The safeguarding of the Bank's assets;

« Compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

e The reliability of accounting records;

s Business sustainability under normal as well as adverse conditions; and
« Responsible behaviors towards all stakeholders.

The efficiency of any internal control system is dependent on the strict observance of prescribed
measures. There is always a risk of non-compliance with such measures by staff. Whilst no system
of intermal conirol can provide absolute assurance against misstatement or losses, the Bank’s
system is designed to provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the procedures in place are
operating effectively. The Board assessed the internal control systems throughout the financial year
ended 313 December 2022 and is of the opinion that they met acceptable criteria.

21



15

16

17

18

GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

STAKEHOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP

The Board and Management of the Bank ensure that communication and dissemination of
information regarding the operations and management of the Bank to shareholders, stakeholders
and the public is timely, accurate and continuous, to give a balanced and fair view of the Bank's
financial and non-financial matters. Such information, which is in plain language, readable and
understandable, is available on the Bank's website, hitp:// www.gtbank.co.tz. The website is
constantly updated with information as events occur. The website also has an Investors Relations
portal where the Bank's financial Reports and other relevant information about the Bank is published
and made accessible to its shareholders, stakeholders and the public. The main objective of the
Bank’s Communication Policy is to support the Bank in achieving the overall goals described in the
Bank's core values which strengthens the Bank’s culture of transparency in pursuit of best corporate
governance practices,

CASHFLOWS

During the year, the Bank generated TZS 8.8 billion (2021 inflow: TZS 12.5 billion) in its operating
activities. This was attributed to net cash inflow from customer deposits of TZS 12.5 billion (2021:
TZS 17.8 billion) which was netted off by the drop of loans and advances by TZS 2.6 billion (2021:
TZS 6.9 billion).

Other major use of the cash flow was payment of corporate taxes amounting to TZS 35.3 million
(2021: TZS 25.3 million), investment in property plant and equipment of TZS 19.7 million (2021: TZS
38 million), investment in software of TZS 35.6 million (2021: TZS 50.8 million).

LIQUIDITY

The Board of Directors confirms that applicable accounting standards have been followed and that
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Board of Directors has strong expectation that the Bank has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

EMPLOYEE’'S WELFARE
Management and Employees’ Relationship

The Bank’s achievements and financial results in such a challenging market are a testimony to good
relationship between employees and management. The Bank continued to enjoy good relationship
between employees and management for the year ended 31% December 2022. There were no
unresolved complaints received by management from the employees during the year.

The Bank is an equal opportunity employer. It gives equal access to employment opportunities and
ensures that the best available person is appointed to any given position free from discrimination of
any kind and without regard to factors like gender, marital status, tribe, refigion and disability which
do not impair ability to discharge duties.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

EMPLOYEE’S WELFARE (CONTINUED)
Training Facilities

For the Bank to achieve its business strategy, it needs talented people who deliver superior resuits.
To support and enable our people to give their best, we provide an engaging and fulfilling
environment with opportunities for personal and professional growth, maintain a competitive reward
strategy and continuously enhance our people practices. Training programs have been and are
continually being developed to ensure employees are adequately trained at all levels. All employees
have some form of annual training to upgrade skills and enhance development.

Medical Assistance

All members of staff and a maximum number of four beneficiaries (dependants) for each employee
were availed medical insurance guaranteed by the Bank. Currently these services are provided by
Strategies Insurance Company Limited.

Persons with Disabilities

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always considered, bearing in mind the
aptitudes of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every
effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Bank continues and appropriate training is
arranged. It is the policy of the Bank that training, career development and promotion of disabled
persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees.

Employees Benefit Plan
The Bank pays contributions to publicly administered pension plans on mandatory basis which

qualify to be a defined contribution plan. Publicly administered pension plans of which Banks’
employees are members is National Social Security Fund (NSSF).

GENDER PARITY

The Bank had 59 employees as at 315 December 2022 out of which 38 were females and 21 were
males (2021: had 41 employees of which 21 were females and 20 were males).

PREJUDICIAL ISSUES
The Bank maintains a zero-litigation status as at 31% December, 2022.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank considers a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control individualty
or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Bank, or vice versa. There were a number of
transactions with the Banks related parties in the normal course of business. These include deposits,
joans and advances, Directors emoluments, Key Management staff emoluments and foreign
currency transactions. All related party transactions and balances are disclosed in note 31 of the
financial statements.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2022

SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Bank recognizes that sustainable development is dependent upon a positive interaction between
economic growth, social uplifiment and environmental protection.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Bank has a policy framework that is designed to ensure that
all projects undertaken adhere to social and environmental regulations of the relevant local, national
and international standards.

The policy framework commits the Bank to:

» Support business activities that contribute to the protection and improvement of the
environment;

« Monitor the effects of the Bank's activities on the environment and work towards the
improvement and pollution prevention;

» Comply with all applicable laws and regutations related to environmental protection and other
requirements to which the Bank is subject to and subscribed to; and

» Provide financing to projects with minimal adverse impact on the environment while ensuring
that those having potentially major adverse environmental and social impact are accompanied
by adequate mitigation measures.

POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS
The Bank did not make any political or charitable donations during the year 2022 (2021: NIL).
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Bank is committed towards giving back to the communities in which it is present by engaging in
various corporate social responsibility activities that have a positive impact on the social, economic
and cultural lives of the beneficiaries. The bank focuses in helping both education and health sectors.
We passionately believe that Corporate Social Responsibility embodies an ardent commitment and
social pact with all the stakeholders. Thus, the Bank is committed to enriching lives in the diverse
communities in which it operates. That said, the bank participated at the Goat Race 2022 through
purchase of a racing goat, of which event proceeds were to be channeled towards execution of
charitable educational activities by the Rotary Club, an international non-profit organization of
compassionate individuals with & common drive to serve disadvantaged communities.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The report by those charged with governance is prepared in compliance with the new Tanzania
Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 (TFRS No. 1) as issued by the National Board of Accountants
and Auditors (NBAA) and became effective from 1st January, 2021

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to the highest standards of business integrity, ethical values and
governance, it recognizes the responsibility of the Bank to conduct its affairs with transparency,
prudence, fairness, accountability and social responsibility, thereby safeguarding the interests of all
stakeholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER 2022

FUTURE PERFORMANCE OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

The bank hereby affirms, that no significant event worthy of reporting occurred after the reporting
date.

APPOINTMENT AND ROTATION CF AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 22(4) of the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006, the Bank shall appoint
annually an independent auditor approved by the Bank of Tanzania who shail undertake the annual
audit of the bank in accordance with international auditing standards.

In addition, Section 6, Sub-section (1) to (4) of the Banking and Financial institutions (External
Auditors) Regulations, 2014, G.N. No. 294 published on 22™ August 2014, mentions the rotation of
external auditor whereby an external auditor shall not audit the same Bank for more than two
consecutive terms of three years. The re-appointment of an external auditor for a second term of
three years shall be subject to a competitive bidding. The external auditor may resume the role as
external auditor with the same bank after a lapse of three years from the last audit engagement
however it shall rotate the pariner in charge of the audit for the second term.

The contact and other details about Nexia SJ Tanzania are as provided below:
Nexia SJ Tanzania,

Certified Public Accountants {Tanzania),
1% Floor, Qyster Plaza,

Haile Selassie Road,

P.O. Box 12728,

DAR ES SALAAM, TANZANIA.

NBAA registration number: PF 266

TIN number: 126-541-015

Tel: +255 22 2926252/53

E-mail info@nexiasj.cotz

Websiie: www.nexiasj.co.tz

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE AUDITOR

The Bank’s auditor, Nexia SJ Tanzania, has a statutory responsibility to report to the stakeholders
as to whether the financial statements of the Bank present fairly the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Tanzania Financial Reporting Standard {TFRS 1) and in the
manner required by the Banking and Financial Institutions Act 2006 and Tanzania Companies Act
2002.

They have expressed their willingness to continue in office and are eligible for re-appointment as per
the Section 6 (3) of the Banking and Financial Institutions (External Auditors) Regulations, 2014,
G.N. No. 294 published on 22™ August 2014. A resolution proposing the re-appointment of Nexia
SJ Tanzania Limited, as auditor of the Bank for the year ending 31% December 2023 will be put to
the Annuat General Meeting.
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30 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

This report was approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors during its 21% meeting
held on 13" February, 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

RNz

Juma Alli Muhimbi - Director Date
é_‘:}!‘@% 99{ 0% \l@ CES
Odunayo Olaolu Akinyede — Date

Managing Director
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED ’

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°T DECEMBER 2022

The Directors are required in terms of the Companies Act of 2002 to maintain adequate accounting records
and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information
included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of
affairs of the Bank as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the
year then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards, the Tanzania Financial
Reporting Standards (TFRS 1), Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2006 and the requirements of the
Companies Act of 2002. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial
statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the
Tanzania Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS 1), The Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2006 and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2002, and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently
applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.

The Directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control
established by the Bank and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To
enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at
reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation
of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are menitored throughout the Bank and all
employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Bank’s business is conducted
in 2 manner that in all reasonable circumstances is abave reproach. The focus of risk management in the Bank
is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Bank. While operating
risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Bank endeavors to minimize it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure,
controls, systems and ethical behavior are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and
constrainis.

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for establishing appropriate policies and procedures to
prevent non-compliance with laws and regulations (NOCLAR), including whistleblowing procedures as a
necessary part of good internal governance. '

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the
system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the
preparation of the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Direciors have reviewed the Bank’s cash flow forecast for the year to 315 December 2023 and, in the light
of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Bank has access to adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsibie for independently reviewing and reporting on the Bank's financial
statements. The financial statements have been examined by the Bank's external auditors and their report is
presented on pages 29 to 34.

The financial statements set out on pages 35 to 96, which have been prepared on the going concern basis,
were authorized and approved by the board on 13" February, 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Juma Alli Muhimbi Odunayo Olaolu Akinyede
Director Managing Director

@_—9@3 2023 \\{\a{,@\ 9~Ci 2023
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

DECLARATION OF THE HEAD OF FINANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2022

The National Board of Accountant and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power conferred under the
Auditors and Accountants (Registration) Act No. 33 of 1872, as amended by Act No. 2 of 1995,
requires financial statement to be accompanied with a declaration issued by the Head of Finance
responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the entity concerned.

It is the duty of a Professional Accountant to assist the Board of Directors and Management to
discharge the responsibility of preparing financial statements of an entity showing true and fair view
of the entity position and performance in accordance with applicable International Accounting
Standards and statutory financial reporting requirements. Full legal responsibility for the preparation
of financial statements rests with the Board of Directors as under Directors Responsibility statement
on an earlier page.

| Peter Jonathan Mkande being the Head of Financial Control of Guaranty Trust Bank (Tanzania)
Limited hereby acknowledge my responsibility of ensuring that financial statements for the year
ended 37 December 2022 have been prepared in compliance with applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2006 and statutory requirements.

I thus confirm that the financial statements give a true and fair view position of Guaranty Trust Bank

(Tanzania) Limited as on that date and that they have been prepared based on properly maintained
financial records.

Signed by: ... /. L
Name; Peter Jonathan Mkande
Pasition: Head Financial Controf

NBAA Membership No: GA 4292
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Guaranty Trust Bank (Tanzania) Limited, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

in our opinicn, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ({FRSs) and the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2002 and the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1ISAs). Our responsibilifies
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountant's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code)
together with the National Board of Accountants and Auditors {NBAA) Code of Ethics and we have fulfiled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention o Note 29 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred a net
loss of TShs {‘000) 824,072 during the year ended December 31, 2022 and as of that date the accumulated
loss amounted to TShs ('000) 14,978,635. These events or conditions indicate that a material unceriainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However,
the Parent company and majority shareholder (Guaranty Trust Bank PLC) of Nigeria, has the ability and
intent to support the subsidiary (GT Bank Tanzania Ltd) to ensure the subsidiary is adequately funded to
meet its working capital and other requirements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements, and in forming our opinion thereen, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. :
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters {continued)

sl Keyaudit matter ..o

22| Impairment loss:on: !oans-andtadvances to customers;z---;

-|.How gur audlt-addressed the key audlt matter

impairment is a subjective area due to the level
of judgement applied by management in
determining provisions. The Bank is required to
calculate impairment of loans and advances in
accordance with both the regulations of the
Bank of Tanzania and IFR3s.

We focused on the identification of impairment
events, which differs based upon the type of
lending product and customer. Judgement is
required to determine whether a loss has been
incurred. We also focused on the measurement
of impairment losses, including the assessment
of whether historical experience is appropriate
when assessing the likelihood of incurred losses
in respect o loans. As disclosed in under the
significant accounting poficies, judgement is
applied in determining the appropriate
parameters and assumptions used to calculate
impairment. For example, the assumption of
customer that will default, the wvaluation of
collateral for secured lending and the expected
future cash flows of loans.

The disclosure associated with credit risk is set
out in the financial statements, under Significant
accounting policies point number (G)

o Qur audit procedures included the
assessment of key controls over the
approval, recording and monitoring of loans
and advances, and evaluating the
methodologies, inputs and assumptions used
by the Bank in calculating collectively
assessed impairment losses, and assessing
the adequacy of impairment aliowances for
individually assessed loans and advances.
We compared the Bank's assumptions for
impairment allowances to externally available
industry, financial and economic data and our
own assessment in relation to key inputs. As
part of this, we assessed the Bank’s
estimates and assumptions used including
the consistency of judgement applied in
determination of the amount and timing of

expected future cash flows, and
consideration of economic factors and
historical default rates.

s We evaluated whether the Bank's

assumption on the expected future cash
flows, including the wvalue of realisable
collateral was based on up-to-date valuations
and available market information.

e We also assessed whether the financial
statements disclosures appropriately reflect
the Bank's exposure to credit risk.

« We challenged management assumptions
regarding the recovery rate of unsecured
facilities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA)} LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

No. | Key audit matter | How our audit addressed the key audit matter
2. Information control systems and controls over financial reporting in the financial statements.

The Banks financial and accounting and | Our audit procedures in this area included, among
reporting systems are heavily dependent on | others the use of our IT auditors / specialists in:

complex systems. Significant reliance on IT '
systems presents a significant risk to the Bank { « Reviewing of [T Governance practices to
as the core banking system is considered access their adequacy, the existence of IT Risk

complex due to ~multiple significant assessment, and the role of IT Steering
functionalities and interdependencies with other Committee (if any) and the Board of Directors;

systems. We spent significant audit effort in the

audit of these systems as part of the audit o ) ) o
process, as it is criical for the control | * Reviewing information systems within the

environment of the bank and therefore, we financial institutions including core banking
determined it to be a key audit matter. system, operating systems, applications,
databases, servers and networking devices and
confirm whether all the systems are rabust
enough to ensure data integrity, confidentiality
and availability;

s Performing application controls testing which
include configuration controls, sensitive access
and segregation of duties controls, interface
controls, data integrity controls and obtain
reasonable assurance on the accuracy and
completeness of reports;

+ Reviewing and accessing whether balances
resulting from all transactions and data
processed within the institution’s 1T system are
accurately captured and reported in the
General Ledger, the Financial Statements and
Returns submitted tc the BOT; and

s+ Reviewing IT security controls including
application security, privileged access, audit
trails, systern monitoring and maintenance,
controls over program and system changes,
integrity and systems ability to recover from
unexpected shutdown's and ability to recover
from a disaster resuiting in loss of data. The
business continuity practice in its lotality was
reviewed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Other Information

Other information consists of the information included in the corporate information, report of the directors,
statement of directors’ responsibilities and declaration of the head of finance but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance thereon.

Directors are responsible for the other information. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materiaily misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2002
and the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania, and for such internal control as Directors
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Directors either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

These charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or efror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financiat statements.

A further description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is given in the
Appendix to Independent Auditor's report. This description forms part of our auditor's repart.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for, and only for, the Bank's members as a body in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2002 and for no other purpose.

As required by the Companies Act, 2002 we report to you, based on our audit that:

() we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(i) in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Bank, so far as appears from our
examination of those books; and

(i) the Bank's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income are in agreement
with the books of account.

As required by the Banking and Financial Institutions (External Auditors) Reguiations, 2014 of Tanzaniz,
we report to you, based on our audit, that:

« In our opinion, the capital adequacy ratios as presented in Page 4 of the financial statements have
been computed in accordance with the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006, and the
Banking and Financial institutions (Capitat Adequacy) Regulations, 2014 of Tanzania.

. . R
T2V A o)

Nexia SJ Tanzania

Certified Public Accountants

1st Floor, Oyster Plaza, Haile Selassie Road

P.O. Box 12729, Dar es Salaam, Tanzania.

9 i
Ll N
- ;

Sujata Jaffer

Engagement Partner

NBAA registration no. ACPA 718
Dar es Salaam

Ref: NSJ/07/2023

Date: Q%i%} 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED}
TO THE MEMBERS OF GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Appendix to-Independent Auditors Report

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's abifity to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2022

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income
L.oan impairment charges

Net interest income after loan impairment charges

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income
Foreign exchange gain (net)

Total operating income
Personnel expenses
Operating lease expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Other operating expenses

Total expenses

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year
Cther comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Notes

10

11
12
13
14

24

2022 2021
TZS'000 TZS'000
4,262,136 3,122,195
{700,693) (391,239)
3,561,443 2,730,956
(30,000) {115,848)
3,531,444 2,615,110
2,251,804 1,826,865
(476,836) (49,955)
1,774,968 1,776,926
196,015 132,715
5,502,426 4,524,751
(2,766,399) (2,384,033)
(113,993) (114,064)
(1,349,357) (1,534,858)
(2,063,199) (2,068,869)
(6,292,948) (6.101,824)
(790,522) (1,577,073)
(33,550) (25,409)
(824,072) (1,602,482)
(824,072) {1,602,482)
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 315" DECEMBER 2022

Notes 2022 2021
TZS'000 TZ5°000

Assets
Cash and balances with Bank of Tanzania 15 7,602,158 4,225,561
Balances with Banks 16 319,195 673,720
{Loans and advances to banks 17 18,196,631 15,777,488
L oans and advances to customers 18 22,473,911 19,867,916
Government securities 19 9,416,697 6,091,841
Intangible assets 20 679,217 1,020,789
Property and equipment 21 6,195,961 6,758,031
Right of use of assets 22 1,599,619 1,705,956
Other assets 23 1,859,682 1,200,597
Current income tax receivable 24 842 -
Total assets 68,343,913 57,321,899
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 25 A7.424 178 34,954,364
Lease obligation 26 1,002,872 940,681
Other liabilities 27 1,419,486 2,103,588
Current income tax payable 24 - 1,817
Total liabilities 49,846,536 38,000,450
Equity
Share capital 28 33,476,012 33,476,012
Accumulated losses 29 (14,978,635) (14,154,563)
Tota' equity 1 8,497,377 1 9,321 ,449
Total equity and liabilities 68,343,913 57,321,899

The f nancial state,ﬁments on pages 35 to 96 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board
2023 and signed on its behalf by:

w

Juma Alli Muhimbi - Odunayo Olaolu Akinyede

Director Managing Director
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance as at 01%! January 2022

Total Comprehensive loss

BRalance at 315t December 2022

Balance at 01% January 2021
Conversion regularization {Note 28)
Total Comprehensive loss

Balance at 315 December 2021

Share Accumutlated Total
Capital Losses
TZ5°000 TZS'000 TZS5'000
33,476,012 {14,154,563) 19,321,449
- {824,072) (824,072)
33,476,012 (14,978.635) 18,497,377
33,475,991 (12,552,081) 20,923,910
21 - 21
- (1,602,482) {1,602,482)
33,476,012 (14,154,563) 19,321,449
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

STATEMENT OF CASH FL.OW

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustment for non-cash Items

Depreciation of property and equipment and right of
use of an asset

Amortization of intangible assets

Asset classified to expenses

De-recognition of right of use of assets

Impairment on loans and advances to customer
Finance cost lease obligation

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Change In:

Loans and advances to customers

Deposits from customers

Other assets

Other liabitities

Tax Paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Investing activities
Purchase of property and plant
Purchase of intangibles assets

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Financing activities
Proceed from issue of ordinary shares

Net cash flow generated from financing activities

increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes

21 &22
20
21
22

26

18
25
23
27
24

21

20

28

32

2022 2021
TZS'000 125'000
{790,522) (1,577,075)
972,171 964,802
377,186 570,055

- 693

45,728 .
30,000 115,846
62,191 62,187
(2,635,995) (6,859,986)
12,469,814 17,880,965
(659,084) (56,498)
(684,101) 1,431,099
(36,209) (25,318)
9,151,179 12,506,772
(349,494) (38,001)
(35,614) (50,865)
(385,108) (88,866)

- 21

- 21

8,766,071 12,417,927
26,768,610 14,350,683
35,534,681 26,768,610
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)
GENERAL INFORMATION

Guaranty Trust Bank (Tanzania) Limited (the "Bank”} is a limited liability company incorporated in
the United Republic of Tanzania under the Companies Act, 2002, and regulated by the Bank of
Tanzania under the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006. The details of the address of its
registered office and principal place of business are disciosed on page 1 whilst its principal activities
are described in the Report of the Directors.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

a) Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of Guaranty Trust Bank Tanzania Limited have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

b) Basis of preparation

The Bank financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of debt and equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Bank's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Bank financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.

c) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

i) New sfandards effective and adopted by the Bank

Title

Key requirements

Amendments to
IAS 16 —

Property, Plant
and Equipment

1AS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment” outlines the accounting treatment for
most types of property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment is
initially measured at its cost, subsequently measured either using a cost or
revaluation model, and depreciated so that its depreciable amount is allocated
on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Amendments to
IAS 37 —
Provisicns,
Contingent
Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” outlines the
accounting for provisions (Habilities of uncertain timing or amount), together
with contingent assets (possible assets) and contingent liabilities (possible
obligations and present obligations that are not probable or not reliably
measurabie).

The amendment has been adhered to by the Bank.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315 DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

c) Changes in accounting policy and disciosures (Continued)

i) New standards effective but not adopted by the Bank

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

Title Key requirements

Amendments 1o [AS 41 “Agriculture” sets out the accounting for agricultural activity — the
IAS 41 __ 1 transformation of biological assets (living plants and animals) into agricultural
Agriculture produce (harvested product of the entity's biological assets). The standard

generally requires biclogical assets to be measured at fair value less costs to
seil.
These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

Amendments fo
IFRS 1 — First-
time Adoption of
International
Financial
Reporting
Standards

IFRS 1 "Firsttime Adoption of International Financial Reporing Standards™
sets out the procedures that an entity must foliow when it adopts IFRS for the
first time as the basis for preparing its general purpose financial statements.
The IFRS grants limited exemptions from the general requirement to comply
with each IFRS effective at the end of its first IFRS reporting period.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

Amendments o
IFRS 3 — Business|
Combinations

IFRS 3 "Business Combinations" outlines the accounting when an acquirer
obtains control of a business {(e.g. an acquisition or merger). Such business
combinations are accounted for using the 'acquisition method’, which
generally requires assets acquired and liabilities assumed to be measured at
their fair values at the acquisition date

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

fif) New standards and inferpretafions that are not yet effective and have not been early

adopfed.

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 312 December 2022 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the
Bank. These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the Bank in the current
or future reporting periods and on foreseesable future transactions.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

c) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)
it} New standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
(Continued).
Title Key requirements Effective date
Amendments 1AS 1 "Pregentaiion of Financ_ia| Statements” sets out the | Effective for annuai
to IAS 1 - overall requirements for financu.al_statement‘s, including hca\{*ur repgrtirjg periods
Presentation they should be strgcjcured, the minimum requl_rements fortheir | beginning on or
of financial content and pverradmg conpepts such as going concern, the | after January 1,
statements accrual basis of accounting and the current/non-current | 2023 Early
distinction. The standard requires a complete set of financial | adoption is
statements to comprise a statement of financial position, a | permitted.
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
a statement of changes in equity and a statement of cash
flows.
Amendments | IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates | Effective for annual
to 1AS 8 —| and Errors” is applied in selecting and applying accounting | pericds  beginning
Accounting policies, accounting for changes in estimates and reflecting | on or after January
Pclicies, cotrections of prior period errors. The standard requires | 1, 2023, Earlier
Changes in compliance with any specific IFRS applying to a transaction, | application is
Accounting event or condition, and provides guidance on developing | permitted.

Estimates and
Errors

accounting policies for other items that result in relevant and
reliable information. Changes in accounting policies and
corrections of errors are generally retrospectively accounted
for, whereas changes in accounting estimates are generally
accounted for on a prospective basis.

IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant
information that faithfully represents those contracts. This
information gives a basis for users of financial statements to
assess the effect that insurance contracts have on the entity's
financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

IFRS 18 IFRS 16 specifies how to recognize, measure, present and | The amendments
Leases disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee |are effective for
accounting model, requiring the recognition of assets and | annual  reporting
liabilities for all leases, unless the lease term is 12 months or | periods  beginning
less the underlying asset has a low value. Lessor accounting | on or after January
however remains largely unchanged from 1AS 17 and the | 1, 2024. Earlier
distinction between operating and finance leases is retrained. | application is
permitied.
IFRS 17 - IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, | The amendments
Insurance measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance | are effective for
contracts contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of | annual  reporting

periods  beginning
on or after January
1, 2023

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES (CONTINUED)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Interest income and expense

interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognized within ‘interest
and similar income’ and ‘interest and similar expense’ in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income using the effective interest rate method.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets, except for,

(a) Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets for which the original credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is applied fo the amortized cost of the financial asset.

(b) Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit impaired but have subsequently
become credit-impaired (or ‘stage 3"), for which interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to their amortized cost (i.e.net of the expected credit loss
provision).

Interest accruing from non-performing credit accommodations is suspended from being recognized
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. When a credit accommodation
is upgraded to a current status, the suspended interest is released to the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

(b) Fees and commission income

Fees integral to the effective interest rate include origination fees received or paid by the entity relating
to the creation or acquisition of a financial asset or issuance of a financial liability, for example fees
for evaluating creditworthiness, evaluating and recording guarantees or collateral, negotiating the
terms of the instrument and for processing transaction documents. Commitment fees received by the
Bank to originate loans at market interest rates are infegral to the effective interest rate if it is probable
that the Bank will enter into a specific lending arrangement and dees not expect to sail the resuiting
ioan shortly after origination. The Bank does not designate loan commitments as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss.

Fees and commission are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided. Commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with
related direct costs) and recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan. Loan
syndication fees are recognized as revenue when the syndication has been completed and the Bank
has retained no part of the loan package for itself or has retained a part at the same effective interest
rate as the other participants. Commission and fees arising from negotiating, or participating in the
negotiation of, a transaction for a third party - such as the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or
other securities, or the purchase or sale of businesses - are recognized on completion of the
underlying transaction.

Other fees and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are
incurred as the services are received.

{c) Foreign currency transiation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Bank are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Bank operates (“the functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Tanzania Shillings (TZS) rounded to the nearest thousand, which is
the Bank's functional and presentation currency.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCQOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i) Transactions and halances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Tanzania Shillings using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated at the closing rate as at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resufting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or
loss.

(d) Financial assets
Measurement methods
Amortized cast and effective interest rate

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using
the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount
and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected fife of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset {i.e. its amortized cost before any impairment allowance) or to the
amortized cost of a financia! lability. The calculation does not consider expected credit losses and
includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are
integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees.

When the Bank revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the respective
financial assets or financial liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using the
original effective interest rate. Any changes are recognized in profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Bank becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on
trade-date, the date on which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus
or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are incremental and directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and commissions. Transaction costs of financial
assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit of
loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognized for
financial assets measured at amortized cost and investments in debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), which results in an accounting loss being
recognized in profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement {Continued)

VWhen the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on initial
recognition the entity recognizes the difference as follows;

{(a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability (i.e. a level 1 input) or based on a valuation technigue that uses only data from
observabie markets, the difference is recognized as a gain or loss.

(b) In alil other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of recognition of deferred day
one profit or loss is determined individually. 1t is either amortized over the life of the
instrument, deferred until the instrument's fair value can be determined using market
observable inputs, or realized through settlement.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Following the adoption of IFRS 9, the Bank classifies its financial assets into the following
categories:

+ Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI}; or

e Amortized cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are described below:
Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financiai liability from the
issuer's perspective, such as loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables.

The classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on:

{a) The Bank’s business model for managing the assets; and
(b} The cash flow characteristics of the asset

Based on these factors, the Bank classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three
measurement categories:

(i  Amortised cost:

This category includes assets that are held for collection of contractuat cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payment of principal and interest (‘'SPPI'), and that are not designated at fair
value through profit or foss. The carrying amounts of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit
foss allowance. Interest income from these assets is included in “interest and similar income™ using
the effective interest rate method. Loans and advances to customers, balances due from other banks,
balances due from Bank of Tanzania and other assets fall under this classification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d} Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value through other camprehensive income (FVOCH)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not
designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
Movements in the carrying amouni are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s
amortized cost which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset, except equity
instruments designated at FVOCI, is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in ‘Net investment
income’. Interest income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the
effective interest rate method. Government securities and equity investments fall under this
classification.

(i) Fair value through profit or foss (FVFL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOC] are measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Business model: the business model reflects how the Bank manages the assets in order to
generate cash flows. That is, whether the Bank's objective is solely to colléct the contractual cash
fiows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from
the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading
purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured
at FVPL. Factors considered by the Bank in determining the business model for a group of assets
inciude past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset’s
performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and

managed and how managers are compensated.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect
contractual cash flows and sell, the Bank assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest (the “SPP1 test'). In making this assessment, the
Bank considers whether the contractuat cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement
i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic [ending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual
terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement,
the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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{d) Financial assets (continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’'s perspective;
that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual
interest in the issuer's net assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Bank subseguently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the Bank’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Bank’s policy is to designate
equity investments as FVOC! when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate
investment returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognized in OCI
and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair vaiue.
Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognized in profit or
loss as other income when the Bank’s right to receive payments is established.

{e} impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss (‘ECL’) associated with its
debt instrument assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI and with the exposure arising from
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Bank recognizes a loss allowance for
such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:
+ An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes;
+ The time value of money; and
+ Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Modification of loans

The Bank sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to
customers. When this happens, the Bank assesses whether or not the new terms are substantiaily
different to the original ferms.

If the terms are substantially different, the Bank derecognizes the original financial asset and
recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset.
The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for
impairment calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Bank also assesses whether the new financial
asset recognized is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances
where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally agreed
payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e) Impairment of financial assets (Continues)
Modification of loans {Continues)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Bank recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash
fiows of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new
gross carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective
interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets).

(F Financial liabilities

The Bank's holding in financial liabilities is mainly in financial liabiities at amortized cost. Financial
liabilities are derecognized when extinguished.

Liabilities measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, generally being their issue proceeds net of
transaction costs incurred. Financial liabilities are subsequently stated at amortised cost and
interest is recognised over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

{g) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to
banks, financial institutions and others on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other
banking facilities. Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of.

. The amount of the loss allowance; and
. The premium received on initial recognition less income recognised in accordance with the
principles of IFRS 15

Loan commitments provided by the Bank are measured as the amount of the loss allowance. The
Bank has not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that
can be settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument. For loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance is recognised as a provision.
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(9) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments {continued)

Howaver, for contracts that include both a loan and an undrawn commiiment and the Bank cannoct
saparately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment component from those
on the loan component, the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognized
together with the loss aliowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit [osses
axceed the gross carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit losses are recognized as a
provision.

{h) Classes of financial instruments
The Bank classifies the financial instruments into classes that reflect the nature of information and

take into account the characteristics of those financial instruments. The classification made can be
seen in the table as follows: -

Financial assets Category

Cash and balances with Bank of Tanzania Amoriized cost

Balances due from other banks Amortized cost

Government securities Fair value through other comprehensive income
Loans and advances to customers Amortized cost

Other assetls excluding prepayments Amortized cost

Financial liabilities

Balances due to other banks Amortized cost

Deposits from customers Amortized cost

Long term borrowings Amortized cost

Other liabilities Amortized cost
{i) income tax

Income tax expense is the aggregate of the charge to the profit or loss in respect of current tax and
deferred tax. Current tax is the amount of income tax payable on the taxable profi for the period
determined in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 2004 and s regutations.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the kability method, for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of asseis and liabilitties and their camying values for financial reporting
purposes. However, if the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, i is not accounted for. Deferred tax is determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability
is settled. Deferred tax assets are recegnized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which temporary differences can be utilized.
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{ Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be
made.

(k) Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and accumulated impairment

loss, if any. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis so as to allocate the cost of assets
to their residual values over their useful economic lives, at the following annual rates:

Percentage
Furniture and {ittings 20
Motor vehicles 20
Computer Equipment 20

The cost of land and building is amortized over the pericd of remaining long-term lease. The assets’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the
reporting period. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset's carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the assets fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are recognized in profit or loss.

{1 Investment property

Investment properties include buildings that are held for long term rental yields and/or for capital
appreciation and fand under operating leases that is hetd for capital appreciation, or for & currently
indeterminate use. Investment properties are initially recognized at cost and subsequently carried
at fair value, determined annually by independent professional valuers. Changes in fair values are
recognized in profit or loss. On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{m) Intangible assets

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs that are directly atiributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique software products controlled by the Bank are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are meat:

it is technically feasibie to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic

benefits:

. adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the software product are available; and

. the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably
measured.

. Core Banking Software recognized as intangible assets are amortized on a straight basis over

their estimated useful life of 10 years while other Software costs are amortized on a straight

basis over their estimated usefu] life of 5 years.

* & & »

Useful Life  Amoriization rate

Computer software (Core banking system) 10 years 10%
Computer software (others) 5 years 20%
(n) impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows {cash-generating unifs). The impairment test also can be
performed on a single asset when the fair value less cost to sell or the value in use can be determined
reliably. Non-financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date. No non-financial assets were impaired at the end of the reporting
period.

{o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, including: cash and non-
restricted balances with Bank of Tanzania, Government Securities and amounts due from other
banks. Cash and cash equivalents exclude the cash reserve requirement held with the Bank of
Tanzania.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(p) Employee benefifs

The Bank and its employees contribute to the National Social Security Fund (NSSF), which are
statutory defined contribution scheme i.e. short-term benefits and termination benefits (e.g. wages
and salaries, annual leave) as per IAS 19 Employee benefits (2011). Employees contribute 10% of
their monthly emoluments while the Bank contributes 10% to the schemes. A defined contribution
scheme is a pension plan under which the Bank pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Bank has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay ali employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior years. The Bank's contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to profit or loss
in the year to which they relate.

{q) Offsetting of financial assets and financiat liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported on the statement
of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settie the liability
simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRSs, or for gains
and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Bank's trading activity.

{r) Contingent Liabilities

Acceptances, guarantees and letters of credit are accounted for as off-balance sheet transactions
and disclosed as contingent liabilities.

{s) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as ‘share capital’ in equity. New shares are recorded at nominal vaiue
and any premium received over and above the par value of the shares is classified as ‘share
premiumy’ in equity.

{t} Operating leases

These comprises leases of low value and short-term leases that are exempt of IFRS 16
requirements. Payments, including pre-payments, made under these leases (net of any incentives

recetved from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(u) Dividends on distribution

Dividend distribution to the Banks shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Banks financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by Banks shareholders.

(v}  Statutory non-distributable reserves

IFRS 9 requires the bank to recognize an impairment loss when there is objective evidence that
loans and advances are impaired. However, Bank of Tanzania prudential guidelines require the
bank o set aside amounts as provision for iosses on loans and advances in addition to those losses
that have been recognized under IFRS 9. Any such amounts set aside represent appropriations of
retained earnings and not expenses in determining profit or loss. The provision as per IFRS 8 is
not iess than the provision as per the Bank of Tanzania Guidelines.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

The Bank's activities expose it to a variely of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis,
evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risk. Taking risk
is core to a financial business, and the operational risks are inevitable consequence of being in
business. The Bank’'s aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimize potential adverse effects on the Bank’s financial performance. The Bank defines risk
as the possibility of losses or profits foregone, which may be caused by internal or external factors.

Risk management is carried out by a risk management depariment under policies approved by the
Roard of Directors. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as
written policies covering specific areas, market risk (such as foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. [n addition, internal audit is responsibie for the independent review
of risk management and the control environment. The most important risks are credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk. The risks arising from financial instruments to which the Bank is exposed are
financial risks, which include credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Bank's customers, clients or
market counterparties fail to fulfill their contractual obligations to the Bank. Credit risk arises mainly
from commercial and consumer loans and advances, credit cards, and loan commitments arising
from such lending activities, but can also arise from credit enhancement provided, financial
guarantees, letters of credit. endorsements and acceptances.

The Bank is also exposed to other credit risks arising from investments in debt securities and other
exposures arising from its trading activities {'trading exposures’), including non-equity trading
portfolic assets, derivatives and setflement balances with market counterparties and reverse
repurchase loans.

Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Bank's business; the Directors therefore carefully manage
the exposure to credit risk. The credit risk management and control are centralized in a credit risk
management team, which reporis to the Board of Directors and head of each business unit
regularly.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)
4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4.1.1 Credit risk management

Loans and acdvances (incl. loan commitments and quarantees)

In measuring credit risk of loan and advances to customers and to banks at a counterparty level,
the Bank reflects three components (i} the ‘probability of default’ (PD) by the client or counterparty
on its contractual obligations; (ii) current exposures to the counterparty and its likely fuiure
development, from which the Bank derives the ‘exposure at default’(EAD), and (i) the likely
recovery ratio on the defaulted obligations (the ‘loss given default’-LGD). Exposure at defauit is
based on the amounts the Bank expects to be owed at the time of default. For example, for & loan
this is the face value. For a commitment, the Bank includes any amount already drawn plus the
further amount that may have been drawn by the time of defauit, should it occur. For regulatory
purposes and for internal monitoring of the quality of the loan portfolio, all the customers are
segmented into five rating classes as shown below:

Bank’s internal ratings scale

Description of the

Bank’s rating grade Equivalent IFRS 9 grading
1 Current Stage |

2 Especially mentioned Stage 1l

3 Substandard

4 Doubtful Stage

5 Loss

4.1.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified and
in particular, to individual counterparties and groups, and to industries. The Bank structures the
levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one
borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a
revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary.
Limits on the level of credit risk by product and industry sector are approved quarterly by the Board
of Directors.

The exposure to any one borrower including banks is further restricted by sub-limits covering on-
and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading items. Actual
exposures against limits are monitored daily. Exposure to credit risk is also managed through
regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital
repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where appropriate.
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NOTES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)
4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4.1.2 Risk limit controf and mitigation policies {continued)
The following are ways the Bank use to mitigate the credit risks.
{i} Colflateral

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditionai of
these is the taking of security for funds advanced, which is common practice. The Bank implements
guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal
collateral types for loans and advances are:

« Mortgagas over residential properties;
« Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable;
« Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities.

Long-term finance and lending to corporate entities are generally secured.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by the
nature of the instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured.

{ii} Credit-refated commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available {o a customer as
required, Guarantees and standby letters of credit carry the same credif risk as loans. Documentary
and commercial letters of credit - which are written undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a
customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the Bank up o a stipulated amount under
specific terms and conditions - are collateralized by the underlying shipments of goods to which
they relate and therefeore carry less risk than direct loans. Commitments to extend credit represent
unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of
credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments o extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed
to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is
less than the total unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon
customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit
commitments because longer-ferm commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than
shorter-term commitments.,

4.1.3 Expected credit loss measurement

The Banks follows a “three-stage” model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since
initial recognition as follows:
s A financial instrument that is not credit impaired on initial recognition is classified in "Stage
1" and has it credit risk continuously monitorad by the Bank.
« If a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to “stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.
« [f financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to “stage 3".
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NOTES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)
4.1  Credit risk (confinued)
4.1.3 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

* Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion
of lifetime expected credit losses that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit
losses on a lifetime basis.

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it should consider forward
looking information such as inflation, interest rate, exchange rate, GDP
The Banks follows a “three-stage” model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since
initial recognition as follows:
» A financial instrument that is not credit impaired on initial recognition is classified in “Stage
17 and has it credit risk continuously manitored by the Bank.
« [f a significant increase in credit risk {SICR) since initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to “stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.
¢ Ifthe financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to “stage
3
+ Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion
of lifetime expected credit losses that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit
losses on a lifetime basis.
+ A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 8 is that it should consider
forward looking information such as inflation, interest rate, exchange rate, GDP and
unemployment.

4.1.3.1 Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)
4.1.3.1.1 Loans and advances to customers

The Bank considers both qualitative and quantitative criteria to determine whether a loan to
customer has experienced a significant increase in credit risk.

Quantitative criteria
A financial instrument is considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk if the
borrower is more than 30 days past due on its contractual payments or in case of non-amartizing
facilities, has an expired line or exposure above limit which has not been reguiarized for a period
exceeding 30 days.

Qualitative criteria

A financial instrument is considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk If the
borrower meets one or more of the following criteria:

* When client diverts funds 1o be used for another purpose instead of the approved purpose
e.g. loan approved for working capital, but client used it for purchasing asset which is not
generating enough cash flows.
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NOTES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)
41 Credit risk {continued)
4.1.3 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)
4.1.3.1 Significant increase in credit risk (SICR) (continued)
4.1.3.1.1 Loans and advances to customers {continued)
s Credit accommodations where corresponding promissory notes or credit agreements were
signed by a person who is not authorized by the company/firm.
« Significant adverse changes in business, financial and/or economic conditions in which the
borrower operates.
« Credit accommodations granted to companies not covered by authenticated board
resolutions authorizing the borrowings.
» un-located certificate of title for the property securing the granted credit facility.
At the time of undertaking of restructuring necessitated by financial difficulties.
4.1.3.1.2 Balances due from other banks
The Bank considers both qualitative and quantitative criteria fo determine whether a credit facility
to other banks has exparienced a significant increase in credit risk. This is done through internal

rating system as shown in the following table

internal rating criteria

No Rating description Score range Credit risk Staging
1 Very Good 1.0-<2.0  Very lowrisk Stage 1
2 Good 2.0-<25 Low risk Stage 1
3 Average 2.5-<3.0 = Relative low risk Stage 1
485 PoorandVerypoor 3.0-<=50 Increase increditrisk Stage 2
- Defaulted Any Impaired Stage 3

interbank placements to counterparties between 1 and 3 are considered to have low credit risk at
any point in time and at the reporting date unless they move to rating 4 & 5 or other factors which
triggers significant increase in credit risk occurs. When a counterparty moves from upper category
(1) to lower categories (2 or 3) it will not be considered as significant increase in credit risk since it
does not depict significant changes in internal price indicators of credit risk, however when it is
downgraded to category 4 & 5 will be considered as significant increase in credit risk.

Other qualitative factors considered as indicators of significant increase in credit risk are:

. Significant counterparty management restructuring or reorganization due to prolonged poer
performance of the entity.

» Significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
borrower that results in a significant change in the borrower's ability to meet its debt
obligations

* Significant reductions in financial support from a parent entity that resulted to significant

adverse changes of operating results of the counterparty.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)
4.1.3.1 Significant increase in credit risk (SICR) (continued)
4.1.3.1.2 Balances due from other banks {continued)
Government securities

Government securities are considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk when
at least one of the following factors has occurred:

. The government has received a low credit rating (“C") by the international rating agencies.
. The government has initiated debt restructuring process

4.1.3.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers
The Bank defines a loan or advance to customer as in default, which is fully aligned with the
definition of credit-impaired, when it meets one or more of the following criteria:

Quantitative criteria
The borrower is more than 80 days past due on its contractual payments.

Qualitative criteria
The borrower meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates the borrower is in significant
financial difficuity. These are instances where:
+ Customer's business extinction or significant detericration due to natural disaster or man-
made factor with no business insurance recovery/reinstatement
+ The borrower is deceased
» Customer business declared bankrupt, under liquidation, under supervisory management,
or facing regulatory recovery that goes to rampant business closures.
The borrower is in breach of financial covenant(s)
« Customer dealing with activities that are banned by current government policy i.e. change
of government policy on particular activities or sector.
« The calling of the guarantee by the guaranteed third party, this to be applicable where the
bank has issued a guarantee to back up its customer who is doing business with a third
party.

Balances due from other banks

For balances from other banks below events are considered as default when they occur.
» When repayments of interest and principal are not done on time as per contractual
schedules to the extent of 30 days’ delay.
e When a counterparty is taken under management by Statutory Manager.
e When a counterparty license has been revoked by the Central bank.
« When the counterparty is declared bankrupt by responsible bodies like Registration,
Insolvency and Trusteeship Agency (RITA) and Court.
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NOTES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES {CONTINUED)

4.1 Credit risk {(continued}
4.1.3  Expected credit loss measurement {continued)

4.1.3.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques
(continued)

4.1.3.3.1 Government securities

For government securities, below events are considered as default when they occur.
» When repayments of interest and principal are not done con time as per contractual
schedules and that such delays considered are not those caused by operational issues.
+ \When the government is downgraded to below rating "C" status by international rating
agency such as Moody’s, S&P, or Fiich.
When the government is declared default/bankrupt by responsible agencies like World Bank or
IMF.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL} is measured on either a 12-month {12M) or Lifetime basis
depending on whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted
product of the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD), and Loss Given Default
(LGD), defined as follows:

4.1.3.3.2 Loans and advances to customers

s The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financiat obtigation (as per
“Definition of default and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months {12M PD}, or
over the remaining lifelime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

EAD is based on the amounts the Bank expects {o be owed at the time of default, over the next
12 months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD). For ravolving producis,
the exposure at default is predicted by taking current drawn balance and adding a “credit
conversion factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining limit by the time of
default. For fixed exposures EAD equate to current outstanding balance at the reporting date.

» lLoss Given Default (LGD) represents the Banks's expectation of the extent of loss on a
defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and
availability of collateral or other credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit
of exposure at the time of default (EAD). LGD is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis,
where 12-month LGD is the percentage of ioss expected to be made if the default occurs in the
next 12 months and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made if the default
occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the loan. The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are
determined based on the factors which impact the recoveries made post default. For secured
products, this is primarily based on coltateral type and projected collateral values, historical
discounts to market/book values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery costs
observed. For unsecured products, LGD’s are assessed based on recovery experience.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)

41 Credit risk (continued)
4.1.3 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques
(continued)

Balances due from other banks
e The ECL model for interbank placements is built on key variables Exposure at Defaul
(EAD), Loss Given Default (LGD) and Probability of default (PD)

e The PD refers to the likelinood of a default over a time horizon. It provides an estimate of
the likelihood that a borrower will be unable to meet its debt obligations. PD for
counterparties are assessed under the framework of internal rating system.

« The EAD defined as gross exposure in the event of obligor default over the next 12 months
(12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD). The bank assesses EAD at each
deal/facility level. EAD is equivalent to the existing outstanding batance (including interest
accrued at the reporting date).

« The LGD, this refers to the share of an asset that is lost if a borrower default. LGD for
interbank investment is computed based on recovery rate that is assessed based on
historical recovery experience of counterparties’ experience in the market.

Government securities

e The ECL model for government securities is built on key variables Exposure at Default
(EAD), Loss Given Default (LGD) and Probability of default (PD).

+ The PD refers to the likelihood of a default over a time horizon. it provides an estimate of
the likelihood that a government wilt be unable to meet its debt obligations.

« The EAD defined as gross exposure in the event of government default over the next 12
months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD). The bank assesses EAD
at each deal/facility level. EAD is equivalent o the existing outstanding balance (including
interest accrued at the reporting date).

« The LGD, this refers to the share of an asset that is lost if the government default. LGD for
government securities is computed based on collateral placed or recovery rate experience.

4.1.3.3 Forward - looking information incorporated in the mode!

Incorporation of forward-looking parameters in ECL calculation has been assessed and analyzed
to the extent of their relevance in relation to the bank’s credit facilities performance and default
rates and their availability with reasonable cost.

Macro-economic factors were assessed to check their correlation and/or causal effect relationship
with bank defauit rates and evolution. None of them demonstrated hypothetical based correlation
with the bank’s default rate evolution over a period under observation. Industry sectorial
performance was the only reliably available variable which show reasonable correlation with Bank’s
default rate evolution in the time horizon considered. Industry performance is the underlying
variable which affects and affected by range of Macro-economic variables in the economy at large
in the country. Thus, industry sectorial performance is the only factor incorporated in the ECL
calculation specifically in PD computation that builds up the forward-looking perspective.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)
4.1 Credit risk (continued)
41.3 Expected credit loss measurement {continued}
Sensitivity analysis
The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are as follows;
i) Market value of collaterals, given its impact on Loss Given Default (LGD)
i) Realization period of re-possessed collaterals, given its impact on present vaiue of the
collaterals.
i) Probabilities of default (PDs)

v) Recovery rate for unsecured portfolio

Set out below are the changes to the ECL as at 31 December 2022 that would resuit from
reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual assumptions used

Change in probability of defaults (PDs)

Increase by 5% Decrease by 5%
TZS'000 TZS5'000
increase/(decrease) in ECL allowance 5,611 (5,611)

4.1.3 Write-off policy

The Bank writes off financial assets where when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and
has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The decision to write off credit facility
has to get approval by the Board of Directors.

41.5 { oss allowance

The loss allowance recognized in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as described below:

» Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instruments experiencing
significant increases (or decreases) of credit risk or becoming credit-impaired in the pericd,
and the consequent “step up” (or “step down”) between 12-month and Lifetime ECL;

s Additional allowances for new financial instrumenis recognized during the period, as weli as
releases for financial instruments de-recognized in the period;

» Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs in the period,
arising from regular refreshing of inputs to models;

s Impacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to models and assumptions;

» Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured on a present
value basis;

+ Foreign exchange retranslations for assets denominated in foreign currencies and other
movements; and

o Financial assets derecognized during the period and write-offs of allowances related to
assets that were written off during the period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)
4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4.1.5 Loss allowance (continued)

Stage | Stage Hl Stage Il Total
I 12 - Month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL aliowance reconciliation ECEL ECL tECL
TZ3'000 TZS'00C TZ23'000 TZS'000
Balance as at 015 January 2022 116,587 670 79,690 196,947
Transfers:
-Transfer from stage 1 to stage 2 - - - -
-Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 - - - -
-Transfer from stage 2 to stage 1 {5,981) - (16,152) (16,133)
;\g\?:ﬁ;ecse on new loans and ) 875 ) 875
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Balance as at 31% December 2022 110,606 1,545 69,538 181,689
Stage | Stage Ui Stage I Total
ECL allowance reconciliation 12 - Month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL o
TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000
Balance as at 015 January 2021 48,768 - 95,032 143,800
Transfers:
-Transfer from stage 1 to stage 2 - - - -
-Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 15,342 - (15,342} -
-Transfer from stage 2 to stage 1 - - - -
Allowance on new loans and 52 477 670 _ 53 147
advances
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Balance as at 315 December 2021 116,587 670 79,690 196,947

4.1.6 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

The maximum on balance sheet exposure to credit risk is as shown below:

2022 2021
TZ8'000 % TZS'000 %
Cash and balances with Bank of Tanzania 7,921,353 13% 4,899,281 10%
Balances due from other banks 18,196,631 30% 15,777,488 33%
Government securities 9,416,697 16% 6,091,841 13%
L.oans and advances to customers 22,473,911 38% 19,867,916 41%
Other assets 1,859,682 3% 1,200,597 3%

59,868,274 100% 47,837,123  100%
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NOTES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES {(CONTINUED)
4.1 Credit risk {continued}

4.1.6 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements (continued) '

The table beiow show the profile of the loans and advances to customers analyses according to the
internal ratings grading system.

2022
Stage | Stage H Stage Il
12 - Month  Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
TZS'000 TZ5°000 TZS°000 T25'000
Current 22,161,652 - - 22,161,652
Especiaily mentioned - - - -
Substandard - 330,438 - 330,438
Doubtful - - - -
toss - - 163,510 163,510
Gross carrying amount 22,161,652 330,438 163,510 22,655,600
ECL allowance {110,606) {1,545) {69,538) {181,689)
Net loans & advances 22,051,046 328,893 93,971 22,473,911
2022 (%) 2021 (%)
Gross Gross

loans & impairment loans & Impairment

advances provisions advances provisions

Stage | 98 98 96 99

Stage I 1 1 2 -

Stage Il 1 1 2 1

100 100 100 100
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NOTES {CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4.1.7 Profile of financial assets subject to credit risk

2022 (TZS'000) 2021 (TZ5°000)
Al other All other
financial financial
Loans and assets Loans and assets
advances to  subject to advances to subject to
customers credit risk customers credit risk
Stage | 22,161,652 35,534,681 19,808,406 26,768,610
Stage |l 330,438 - 210,958 -
Stage Il 163,510 - 45 499 -
Gross 22.655,600 35,634,681 20,084,863 28,768 610
Less impairment allowances: {181,689) - (156,947) -
{181,689) - (196.,947) -
22,473,911 35,534,681 19,867,916 26,768 610
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA)} LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)

4.1 Credit risk {continued)

4.1.7 Profile of financial assets subject to credit risk {continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the total impairment provision for loans and advances was TZS
181.69 million (2021: TZS 196.95 million). Further information of the impairment allowance for loans
and advances to customers is provided in note 18.
At 31% December 2022, the Bank’s total loans and advances to customers increased by 13.12% as
a result of team effort during the year. When entering into new markets or new industries, in order
to minimize the potential increase of credit risk exposure, the Bank focuses more on the business
with clients or banks with good credit rating or retail customers providing sufficient collateral.

(a) Stage I /neither past due nor impaired

The portfolio of loans and advances that were classified as stage | in 2022: (Amounts are in
TZS'000).

Individual {retail) Corporate entities Loans &
Corporate advances
Overdraft Termicans customers *SME Total to Banks
31-Dec-22
Stage | - 11,768,206 10,393,446 - 22,161,652 18,196,631
- 11,768,206 10,393,446 - 22,161,652 18,196,631
31-Dec-21
Stage | ' - 8751260 11,116,658 - 19,867,916 15,777,488
- 8,751,260 11,116,656 - 19,867,916 15,777,488
*SME - Small and Medium Enterprises.
(b) Other financial assets stage [
2022 2021
TZS'000 TZS'000
Cash and balances with Bank of Tanzania 7,921,353 4,899,281
Balances due from other banks 18,196,631 15,777,488
Government securities held at FVOCI 9,416,697 6,091,841
Other assets (excluding prepayments & stationeries) 1,282,996 749,622
Total 36,817,677 27,518,232
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)
4.2 Market risk

The Bank takes on exposure to market risks. Market risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Markat
risks arise from open positions in interest rates and foreign currencies, all of which are expesed
to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates
or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, and foreign exchange rates. The Bank separates
exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios.

The market risks arising from trading and non-trading activities are concentrated in the Bank’s
treasury department and monitored regularly. Regular reports are submitted {o the Board of
Directors and heads of department. Trading portfolios include those positions arising from
market-making transactions where the Bank acts as principal with clients or with the market.

Non-trading portfolios primarily arise from the interest rate management of the entity’s retail and
commercial banking assets and liabilities.

421 foreign exchange risk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency
axchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets limits on the level of
axposure by currency and in aggregate for both overnight and intra-day positions, which are
monitored daily.

At 31° December 2022, if the functional currency had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
the United States Dollar (USD) with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year
would have been TZS 56.22 million (2021: TZS 47.90 million) lower/higher mainly as a resuit of
foreign exchange gainsflosses on franslation for USD denominated financial assets and
liabilities, respectively.

At 318 December 2022, if the functional currency had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
the Sterling Pound (GBP) with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would
have been TZS 1.64 million (2021 0.62 million) lower/higher mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation for Sterling Pound denominated financial assets and
liabilities respectively.

At 315 December 2022, if the functional currency had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
the Euro with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been TZS
4.08 million {2021 TZS 2.02 million) lower/higher mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/fosses on transiation for Euro denominated financial assets and liabilities respectively.

The exposure to foreign currencies other than the USD, Eure and GBP is minimal.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)

4.2.2 Interest rate risk (continued)

The table below summarizes a range of effective interest rates by major currencies for monetary

financial instruments (TZS and USD) for the year ended 31% December 2022 and 31% December
2021:

2022 : 2021
Assets TZS uspb TZS uspb
Loans and advances to customers 11%-19% 7.0%-8.0% 11%-18% 7.0%-9.0%
Loans and advances to banks 4.0%-5.0% 0.01%-4.0% 4.0%-5.0% 0.01%-2.5%
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 3%-11% 0.5%-2% 3%-11% 0%
Balances due from other banks 0% 0% 3.5%-4.5% 0%

Long term borrowings

At 31 December 2022, if the interest rates on functional currency denominated assets and fiabilities
had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been TZS 50 million (2021: T2S 5 million) iower/higher, mainly as a result of
fluctuations in interest income and interest expense.

At 31 December 2022, if the interest rates on USD denominated assets and liabilities had been 100
basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been TZS 50 million (2021: post tax loss TZS 74 million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of fluctuations
in interest income and interest expense. The exposure to interest rates fluctuations on assets and
liabilittes denominated in currencies other than USD is minimal.

4.2.3 Pricerisk

The Bank does not hold any financial instruments that is subject to price risk during the year 2022
{2021: None).

4.3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its

financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence
may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfilf commitments to lend.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3137 DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4.3.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Bank’s liquidity management process, as carried out within the Bank and monitored by a
separate treasury team, includes:

Maintaining documented liquidity risk/crisis management plans which among other things
defines situations which could precipitate liquidity crisis. Examples of such situations are:
unusual activities at the branches, default by one or more large borrowers, devaluation of
currency in which the Bank has large exposure and large litigation claim on the Bank.

Maintaining adequate liquidity at all times and for all currencies, and hence to be in a position,
in the normal course of business to meet all our obligations, to repay depositors, to fulfill
commitments to lend and to meet any other commitment made. This takes the form of
maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection
against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow,

Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities;

Presence of Liquidity Crisis Management Team (LCMT) whose purpose is to mitigate
adverse effects of liquidity crisis. Among other things, it is tasked with: investigating causes
of crisis, assess the timing and duration thereof, decide on preliminary remedial actions to
mitigate the effects of the crisis; assessing market sentiments.

The Bank also monitors unmatched medium-term assets, the level and type of undrawn
lending commitments, the usage of overdraft facilities and the impact of contingent liabilities
such as standby letters of credit and guarantees.

4.3.2 Funding approach

Sources of liquidity are reguiarly reviewed by a separate treasury team to maintain a wide
diversification by currency, geography, provider, product and term.

4.3.3 Minimum liquidity

Section 7 of the Banking and Financia! Institutions (Liquidity Management) Reguiations, 2014
requires that a Bank or financial institution shall maintain liquid assets amounting to not less than
twenty percent (20%} of its demand liabilities. The Bank’s liquidity ratio at the end of the period was
46.76% (2021: 58.16%}.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA} LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%T DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)

4.3 Liquidity risk {(continued)

4.3.4 Non-detivative cash fiows

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Bank under non-derivative financial
liabilities by remaining contractual maturities at end of the reporting period. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, as the Bank manages

the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

At 31° December 2022
Assets

Cash in Hand

Cash and balances with
Bank of Tanzania
Balances with Financial
Institutions

Loans and advances to
banks

Loans and advances to
customers

Investment securities

Total financial assets
Deposits from customers
Other liabilities

Total financial
liabilities

Net liquidity gap

More

1-3 6 12 1to 5 Total
than
months Months months years - Byears
TZS'000 TZ3S'000 TZS5'000 TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000
1,177,083 - - - - 1,177,083
6,425,075 - - - - 6,425,075
319,195 - - - - 319,195
18,196,631 - - - - 18,196,631
5354,300 1,904,876 2,007,428 13,030,173 177,134 22,473,911
- - 9,418,697 - - 9,416,687
31,472,284 1,904,876 11,424,125 13,030,173 177,134 58,008,592
40,004,248 - 7,419,930 - - 47424178
1,419,486 - - - - 1,412,486
41,423,734 - 7,419,930 - - 48,843,664
(9,951,450) 1,904,876 4,004,195 13,030,173 177,134 9,164,928
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4.3.4 Non-derivative cash flows {continued)

At 31% December 2021
Assets

Cash in Hand

Cash and balances with
Bank of Tanzania
Balances with Financial
Institutions

L.oans and advances to
banks

L.oans and advances to
customers

Investment securities

Total financial assets

Deposits from
customers

Other liabilities

Total financial
ftabilities

Net liquidity gap

1-3 6 12 1105 More  1otal
than
months Months months years 5 years
TZ5'000 TZS'000 TZS'000 TZ25'000 TZ8000 TZS'000
652,250 - - - - 852,250
3,573,311 - - - - 3,573,311
673,720 - - - - 873,720
15,777,488 - - - - 15,777,488
4,223,062 1,192,087 774739 13,678,048 - 19,867,916
- 4,300,000 - 1,791,841 - 5,091,841
24,899,831 5,492,067 774,739 15,469,889 - 46,636,526
27,396,454 - 7,557,910 - - 34,954,364
2,103,588 - - - - 2,103,588
29,500,042 - 7,557,810 - - 37,057,952
(4,600,211) 5,492,067 (6,783,171) 15,469,889 - 9,578,574
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°T DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

i. Non-derivative cash flows {continued)

315 December 2022
Financial assets
Balance due from other banks

Financial liabilities
Other Liabilities

Net financial position
345t December 2021
Financial assets

Balance due from other banks

Financial liabilities
Other Liabilities

Net financial position

TZ5'000

18,196,631

1,419,486

16,777,145

15,777,488

2,103,588

13,673,200
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER 2022
NOTES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)

4.3  Liquidity risk (continued)

4.3.4 Non-derivative cash flows {continued)

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding loan commitments include
cash, balances with Bank of Tanzania, items in the course of collection and treasury bill, balance
due from other banks and loans and advances {o customers,

4.3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of government securities are based on the last auction for treasury bills and bonds
that was heid at year end. The fair values of the Bank's other financial assets such as loans and
advances to customers and financial liabilities such as deposits and interbank borrowings
approximate the respective carrying amounts due to the generally short pericds to maturity dates.

Deposits from banks and customers

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest-bearing
deposits, is the amount repayable on demand.

Fair value Merarchy

IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those
valuation techniques are observable or uncbservable. Observable inputs reflect market data
obtained from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Bank’s market assumptions.
These two types of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

« Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This
level includes listed equity securities and debt instruments on exchanges and exchanges
traded derivatives like futures.

+ Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observabie for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from prices).
The sources of input parameters are: LIBOR yield curve, Bloomberg and Reuters.

« lLevel 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°T DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)
4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4.3.5  Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Fair vaiue hierarchy (continued)

The table below shows the classification of financial instruments held at fair value ino the valuation
hierarchy set out below as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair
value
TZ5'000 TZ5’000 TZS’000 TZ5°G00
315 December 2022
Assets
Government securities (Note 19) - 9,416,897 - 9,416,697
- G416 697 - 9,418,697
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - - - -
315t December 2021
Assets
Government securities (Note 19) - 6,091,841 - 6,091,841
- 6,091,841 - 6,091,841
Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments - - - -
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°7 DECEMBER 2022

NOTES {CONTINUED)
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IERS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. 1t aiso requires management {0 exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Bank's accounting policies. The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next year. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) impairment losses on loans and advances

The measurement of the expected credit loss atfowance for financial assets measured at amortised
cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions
about future economic conditions and credit behavior (.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and
the resulting losses).

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for
measuring ECL, such as:
« Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;
« Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;
e Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL; and
» Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

(b)Taxes

The Bank is subjected to numerous taxes and levies by various government and quasi- government
regulatory bodies. As a rule of thumb, the Bank recognises liabilities for the anticipated tax/levies
payable with utmost care and diligence. However, significant judgment is usually required in the
interpretation and applicability of those taxes/levies. Should it come to the attention of management,
in one way or the other, that the initially recorded liability was erroneous, such differences will impact
on the income and liabilities in the period in which such differences are determined.

(c) Property and equipment

Management reviews the usefu! lives and residual values of the items of property and equipment on
a regular basis. During the year, the Directors determined no significant changes in the useful lives
and residual values.

{d) Intangible assets

Management makes critical estimates in determining the amortization rates and carrying amounts for
intangible assets.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)
INTEREST INCOME
| pans and advances to Customers

L oans and Advances to Banks
Investment in T bills

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest Expenses

LOAN IMPAIRMENT CHARGES
Collective impairment
FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fees and commissions income
Fees and commissions expense

FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN
Foreign exchange gain
PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Wages and salaries

Contributions to defined contribution plans
Other employee benefit

OPERATING LEASE EXPENSES

Resident renis

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Amortization of Intangibles

Depreciation of Property, Plants and Equipment
Right of use of an asset

2022 2021
TZS ’000 TZS '000
3,506,884 2,735,097
488,417 86,312
266,835 300,786
4,262,136 3,122,195
700,693 391,239
30,000 115,846
2,251,804 1,826,865
{476,836) (49,955)
1,774,968 1,776,926
196,015 132,715
2,071,732 1,743,234
578,510 536,912
116,157 103,887
2,766,399 2,384,033
113,993 114,064
377,186 570,055
911,562 938,310
60,609 26,493
1,349,357 1,534,858
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA} LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED})

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Auditors' and tax remuneration
Insurance Expenses

Office expenses

Professional fees

Finance cost (Lease obligation)
General Administrative expense

CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANK OF TANZANIA
Cash at hand
Balance with Central Bank {(BOT)

2022 2021

TZS ’000 TZS 000
61,531 61,531
75,440 65,868
750,776 683,324
48,596 27,141
62,191 62,187
1,064,665 1,168,818
2,063,199 2,068 869
1,177,083 652,250
6,425,075 3,573,311
7,602,158 4,225,561

The central bank issued new directive in 2017 which instructed banks to merge statutory
minimum reserve (SMR) and settlement account which enable banks to access and utilize all
funds in excess of the required SMR at any time without making written request to director of

banking supervision.
BALANCE WITH BANKS

Balances held with other banks

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS
Placement with local banks

Placement with foreign banks

Total Gross loan and advance to banks

Less: Allowances for impairment on financial instruments
Net Loan and Advance to banks

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
individual loans:
Other Non-financial corporations

Total Gross Loan

Less: Allowances for impairment on loans and advances
during the year

Net Loans and Advances

Current
Non-current

2022 2021
125’000 TZS '000
319,195 673,720
5,505,047 3,579,374
12,691,584 12,198,747
18,196,631 15,778,121
. (633)
18,196,631 15,777,488
11,924,335 11,041,122
10,731,265 9,023,741

22,655,600 20,064,863
{181,689) (196,947)
22,473,911 19,867,916
4,528,910 6,189,868
17,945,001 13,678,048
22,473,911 19,867,916
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES {CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENT SECURITIES

Treasury bills maturing within 3 months

Treasury bills and Treasury Bonds maturing after 3 months
T bills and T Bonds Total

All governments securities are current

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Net book amount at 01* January 2022
Additions

At the year end

Amortization

Balance at 01 January 2022
Accumulated Amortization for the year
Balance as at 31 December 2022

Net carrying value

2022 2021

TZS '000 TZS 000
903,303 4,300,661
8,513,394 1,791,180
9,416,697 6,091,841
3,350,968 3,300,103
35,614 50,865
3,386,582 3,350,968
{2,330,179) (1,760,123)
(377,186) (570,056)
(2,707,364) (2,330,179)
679,217 1,020,789
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022
NOTES {CONTINUED)

RIGHT OF USE OF AN ASSET

Opening balance as at 01* January 2022
De-recognition

Depreciation

Closing balance

OTHER ASSETS

Prepayment for rent and insurance
Others

Other assets

Current
Non- Current

TAXATION
{a) Income tax charge
Alternative minimum tax

Reconciliation of income tax credit to expected income tax based

on accounting ioss

Accounting loss before taxation

Tax credit at applicable rate (30%)

Tax on non-deductible expenses

Deferred tax credit not recognized

Other PPE adjustments

Tax effect of depreciation on non-qualifying assets

Alternative minimum tax

(b} Tax movement
At start of year
Charge for the year
FPayments

At end of year

2022 2021
TZS '000 TZS "000
1,705,956 1,732,450
(45,728) -
(60,609) (26,494)
1,599,619 1,705,956
576,686 450,975
1,282,996 749,622
1,859,682 1,200,597
1,859,682 1,200,597
1,859,682 1,200,597
33,550 25 409
33,550 25,409
(790,522,) (1,577,075)
(237,156) (473,123)
81,233 71,602
155,745 374,558
178 (657)

- 27,620

33,550 25,409
33,550 25,409
1,817 1,726
33,550 25,409
(36,209) (25,318)
(842) 1,817
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK {TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)
(¢} Deferred income tax

Depreciation on property and equipment
Non-deductible expenses

Tax losses for the year/period

Capital allowance

Adjusted taxable income

Deferred tax at the beginning

Deferred tax there on domestic tax 30%

Deferred tax asset on property and equipment
Deferred tax asset on provisions/loan impairment.
Under/{over) provision in prior year

2022 2021
TZS'000 TZS'000
1,304,677 1,508,366
270,778 238,673
(670,261) (1,331,362)
(1,485,194) (1,617,172)
(580,001) (1,201,495)
(4,541,664) (4,170,941)
(201,078) (399,409)
54,333 59,604
(9,000) (34,754)

- 3,835
(4,697,408) (4,541 664)

The normal procedure for agreeing final income tax liability in Tanzania involves the company filing
its final income tax returns with the Tanzania Revenue Authority (TRA) followed by TRA performing
their own review of the company’s submissions and issuing their notice of tax assessments to the
company. The final income tax liability as determined by TRA after review may differ from the liability
determined by the company and procedures are in place for the company to object and appeal against
such assessments. it is common that a timeframe from the company’s own submission of its final tax
returns and for TRA performing their review and issuing of notice of final tax assessment may take

several months or years.

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
Current accounts

Savings accounts

Term deposits

Deposits

Al deposits are current, Saving and Term

LEASE OBLIGATION
Opening balance
Interest cost

Closing balance

OTHER LIABILITIES

Deferred income

Suppliers payable

Sundry creditors and accruals

Other liabilities are payable within 12 months

2022 2021
TZS'000 TZS'000
42,309,488 31,332,167
1,997,772 1,176,888
3,116,918 2,445 309
47424178 34,954,364
940,681 878,494
62,191 62,187
1,002,872 940,681
80,421 211,413
81,320 58,478
1,257,745 1,833,697
1,419,486 2,103,588
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)

SHARE CAPITAL 2022 2021
TZS’000 TZS’000
Authorized Share Capital (1,826,484 Ordinary shares @TZS 21900) 39,999,999 39,999,899

Paid up share Capital at December (1,528,585 Ordinary shares @
TZS 21900) 33,476,012 33,475,991
Conversion regularization - 21
33,476,012 33,476,012

ACCUMULATED LOSSES

At January (14,154,563)  (12,552,081)
Transfer to retained earning (824,072) {1,602,482)

{14,978,635)

(14,154,563)

The Bank has reported a net loss of TZS 824,072,000 (2021: TZS 1,602,482,000) for the year ended

31 December 2022,

The Bank has sufficient capability to meet day to day working capital requirements for its operations.
Likewise, the parent Bank have confirmed their willingness to provide continued financial support to

Guaranty Trust Bank (Tanzania) Lid as and when required.

Based on these facts, the Directors consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a
going concern basis which assumes that the Bank will be in operational existence for the foreseeable

future.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

In common with other banks, the Bank conducts business involving acceptances, letters of credit,
guarantees, performance bonds and indemnities. The majority of these facilities are offset by

corresponding obligations of third parties.

2022 2021
TZS'000 TZ8'000
Contingent liabilities

Outstanding letters of credit (foreign currency) 154,786 2,175,486

Outstanding guarantees and indemnities:
- foreign currency 893,000 1,185,077
- local currency 7,943,844 5,140,058
8,991,630 8,500,621

Nature of contingent liabilities

Lefters of credit commit the Bank to make payments fo third parties, on production of documents,
which are subsequently reimbursed by customers. Guarantees are generally written by the Bank to
support performance by a customer to third parties. The Bank will only be required to meet these

obligations in the event of the customers’ default.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES (CONTINUED)
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Other commitments 2022 2021
TZS'000 TZS'000

Undrawn formal stand-by facilities, credit lines and other
commitments to lend - -

Nature of commitments

Commitments to lend are agreements to lend to a customer in future subject to certain conditions.
Such commitments are normally made for a fixed period. The bank may withdraw from its contractual
obligation for the undrawn portion of agreed overdraft limits by giving reasonable notice to the
customer.

Capital commitments

At 31% December 2022, the Bank had capital commitments of TZS 35 million and TZS 330 million
(2021: TZS 38 million) in respect of furniture and work in progress. The Bank's management is
confident that future net revenues and funding will be sufficient to cover this commitment.

Operating lease commitments
The Bank does not have any commitments in respect of non-cancellable lease commitments.

Other contingent labilities 4

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has contingent liability of TZS 8,991,630,000 during the
period. (2021: TZS 8,500,621,000)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The related party fransactions during the year and the balances due to the related parties were:

Deposits to directors and key management personnel

(a) Deposits 2022 2021

TZ5000 TZS’000
Deposits held at 31* December 154,187 75,819
{ oans and advances outstanding as at 31% December 357,414 198,863

(b) Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 1,244,075 1,059,409

Key management personnel are described as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly, including any director
of the Bank.
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GUARANTY TRUST BANK (TANZANIA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2022

NOTES {(CONTINUED)
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES {CONTINUED)

(c} Directors’ emcluments
Fees and other emoluments paid to directors of the Bank during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
TZS000 TZS'000
Directors travel cost shared with £ast Africa Counter party - -
Emoluments of directors in respects of services rendered
(executive) - -
Emoluments of directors in respects of services rendered (non-
executive) 177,603 139,451
177,603 139,451
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
Cash and cash equivalents 7,921,353 4,899,281
Loan and advances fo banks 18,196,631 15,777,488
Government Securities 9,416,697 6,091,341

35,534,681 26,768,610

EVENTS AFTER PERIOD END

Al the date of signing the financial statements, the Directors are not aware of any other matter or
circumstance arising since the end of the financial year, not otherwise dealt with in these financial
statements, which significantly affect the financial position of the Bank and results of its operations.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The functional currency of the Bank, which is also its presentation currency, is Tanzanian Shillings
(TZS). Except where indicated otherwise, these financial statements are presented in Tanzania
Shillings, rounded to the nearest thousand (TZ5'000). Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the ruling exchange rates at the closing date which are USD/TZS
2,350, GBP/TZS 2,810.61, EUR/TZS 2,483.99, ZAR/TZS 137.51 and KES/TZS 18.91.

COMPARATIVES

Where necessary, comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation
in the current year.
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